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ABOUT US

? I

Perform is a global market leader in
the commercialisation of multimedia
sports content across multiple
platforms. Perform owns one of the
largest portfolios of digital sports
rights in the world, through contracts
relating to more than 200 sports
leagues, tournaments and events.

Perform’s management is focused

on driving earnings growth through
leveraging its content across new digital
platforms, new products and across
new geographies, taking advantage

of favourable technology trends such
as growth in digital media consumption
and online video viewership.

www. performgroup.com




(E51m, 2010 £01m, 2009 £01m)

2adjusted profit after tax excludes exceptional tems (£5 0m 2010 £07m 2009 Enil) share based payments
(E5Im. 2010 £01m, 2009 £0 1m), profits from jomt ventures (Enit 2030 £0 Sm, 2009 £0 2m loss) and amortisation
of acquisition Intangibles (£0 9m) 2009 exciudes a one-off write back of mterast of E5 3m

3Profit after tax 1s atter charging excepbcnal items (ES Om, 20010 EC 7m, 2009 £nd) share basad payments (E5 Im,
2010 £01m, 2009 £0 ) and amartisation of acquisition Intangibles (£0 9m; 2010 £0 3m, 2009 £0 3m) 2009
Included a one-off write back of interest of £5 3m.

“Refer to note 1 of the financlat statements on page 73 for an explanation of adjusted eamings per share
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OVERVIEW

Business at a glance

Perform has developed a range of B2B
and B2C products around four key high

growth areas

Content
distribution

More in
Business review
Page 22

Perform owns the digital sports media rights to over

200 leagues tournaments and events and utilises this
nghts portfolio to delver a range of preducts covenng live
video, news aditonal and sports data These products are
sold o online bookmakers, broadcasters mobile operators
and other business clients around the world

in 20N, Watch&Bet delivered 11,376 Iive sports matches and
hcensed content to 35 online bookmakers, making it the
clear global market leader in the delivery of ive video to
the onhne sports betting sector

Watch&Jrade, CMNISPORT and GSM also delivered strong

revenue growth by expanding the number of clients
hicensing their services

3%

of 20711 revenues (2010 61%)

year on year revenue growth

2 Perforrn Group pic Arvna Reoort and Accoue ts 2011

Advertising
& sponsorship

More in
Businass review
Page 24

Perform generates video advertising and sponsorship
revenues through the sale of pre-roll video adlvertisernents
on its video on demand network the ePlayer The ePlayer
s embedded on the websites of leading publishers and
sports portals in 20 terntones and broadcast over 65,000
ndiviclual premium sports clios in 201

Perform generates display acvertising and sponsorship
revenues through the sale of display advertiserments on
the Groups own websiles including Goal com, which 1s the
world’s largest football website, Spox com, Sportal com au
and Soccerway com The Group also acts 0% an advertising
sales agent for a network of third-party sports webstes
cluding the Premier League’s of fiaal website

4%

of 201 revenues (2010 10%)

106%

year on year revenue growth




OVERVIEW
L

Subscription

Marein
Business review
Pageo 27

Perforrn generates subscrption revenues from consumers
paving monthly or annual fees to watch internet delivered live
vidaeo and video on demand sports content vig LIVESPORT
TV and a rarge of third-party subscription products on behalf
of foothal clubs {eg Chelsea TV Onlineg), sports bodios

(eg ATP Werld Tour - www tenristv com) and broadcasters
ey Fox Soccer - www foxsoccer2go com)

in addition, Perform also delivers a range of lower ARPU,
Goal com branded SMS subscnption products These
products deliver consumers live scores and news direct
to ther mobile phones These services are focused on

developing world economies with significant mobile but
limited broadband and smartphones penetration

9%

of 201 revenues (2010 12%)

9%

year on year revenue growth

Technology
& production

More in
Business review
Page 28

Perform generates technology and production revenues
from a range of cients by desigring building and
managing websites and mobile products on behalf

of sports nghts holders (e g Aston Villa Football

Club), ingesting, encoding and strearming ive and on
demand content on behalf of sports nghts holders and
broadcasters (eg Abu Dhabi Media Company) and by
Firming and editing sports matches for rnights holders
(eg Prermiership Rugly)

Acrngior focus in 201 has been the buld and optirmisation
of services for delivery via new smartphone tablet and
connected TV operating systems

4%

of 201 revenues (2010 17%)

year on vear revenue growth

Perforrn Group pic Anniual Report and Accounts 201
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OVERVIEW

Market overview
Perform’s digital products are uniquely

positioned for global growth

Trends

Increased digital
media consumption

Significant_growth
in online advertising

Key industry drivers

» In 2011 more than 100 milion
Amencans watched online
video content on an average

day - a 43 per cent year on year

Increase (comScore)

» Mgbile network connection

speeds grew 66 per cent In 2011

(Cisco)

» Two-thirds of the world’s motile
data traffic will be video by 2016

(Cisco)

» Global sports media rights and

sponsorship spend estimated to

reach $146bn in 2014 ($118bn
201 (Pw)

* Internet advertising revenues
reached $7 9bn for the third
quarter of 201, representing
a 22 per cent in¢crease on the
same period in 2010 (|1AB)

» Half the total US mobile
population uses mobile
media The meobile media
user population {those
who browse the mobile
web, access applications or
download content) increased
to 116 mifion by August 200
- 219 per cent year on year
Increase (comScore}

» The US and EU5 (UK France,

Germany ltaly and Spain) online
free to view video advertising
market is expected to grow to
US$2 4bn by 2015 from $1orin
2010 (ScreenDigest)

Perform

+ Platform agnostic approach

» Multi-platform rights
portfolio

» Internet powered business
model

¢+ The Group's ePlayer is No 1
ranked for online sports
video in UK, France, Italy
and Turkey No 2in Spain and
US and No 3 in Germany.

+ 3 6bn streams on the ePlayer
in 2011

* Goal com, the world’s leading
football portal owned by
the Group had an average
of 24m monthly unique
users in 2011

Significant growth « in play betting represents the « Expected market kberalisabon  « Market leader in delivery
in In-play betting fastest growing part of sports In the betting and gaming sector  of live video to online
gftz%ngeartc&;i?g;g C(::)A GR » Paddy Power with football has sportshooks
doubled the number of in-play * Growing portfolio of
+ In-play betting accounted for 67 matches nsing to 3,000 per multi platform live events
per cent of Sportingbet's total month in peak times in 201 + Rolling out mobile
European amounts wagered in (Paddy Power)
2010/1 up from 61 per cent optimised service
N 2009/10 (Sportingbet)
Significant connected + Connectable dewices forecast « Smart TV units sold in 200 * |deally positioned when
TV and mobile to Increase from 222rm in 201 were estimated to have reached  connected TV platforms
opportunity to 766m by 2014 64 milion By 2016, Smart TV become mass consumer

» Growing penetration
of smartphones (Western
Europe &7 per cent and North
America 72 per cent by 2014)
and connected devices

4 Perform Group pic Annudl Resaort and Accounts 200

unit shipments are expected
to reach 153 muflion units
(MarketsandMarkets)

+» The number of mobile
connected devices are
expected to exceed the
world'’s population in 2012
(Cisco)

products

* The Group's platform
development strategy for
2012 will include launching
it's own consumer products
(LIVESPORT TV, Goal com,
Spox com} and a range of
B2B and third-party consumer
products on a range of
connected TV platforms




Increasing broadband connections
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100m

In 2Z0il more than 100 mikon
Arrencans watched online vdeo
content on an averege day -a
47 paer Cert year On yeor INcrease
{comScore)

$2.4bn $7.9bn

Interet aclvertivng revenies
reached $/9bn in the third
quarier of 2011 o 22 e certon
tne same perod In 2010) 1AB)

% of Sportingbet's European amounts
wagered that are in-play

o $30bn

Market for global inlerachive
garming expected to grow lo
$30bn in 2012 from $20bn

1N 2008 (TY Sports Mar«ets)

75%

Willlarn Hill's growth inin-play
betbing stakes in 2001/12
(Wilkam HilD

2008/2000  2009/2010 0W/20M Source Sportingbet
Smart TV units
The number of cornected devices Forecas. numior of smartonone
will treble from Sbnn 2011 to 24bn shupments 1n 2015 (O Sbnn
in 2020 (Machina Research) 20 A
84m
43 &y
2010 201 2016 Sowrea 10C
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OVERVIEW

Chairman’s review

It is a pleasure to introduce Perform’s maiden
Annual Report. It has been an exciting year for
us and these results reflect our strong,

international growth.

This1s my first Annual Report as
Non-Executive Chairman of Perform
and the Groups first as a listed company
t am celighted to have joined at such

an exciting time for the Group with

year on year revenue growth of 53

per cent and adjusted EBITDA growth
of 79 per cent The Group has a clear
strategy, robust business model and is
uniguely positioned to take advantage
of favourable technology trends such
as growth in digital media consumption,
online sporls betting and online

video viewership

The Group has delivered a strong set of
results with Group revenues of £103 2m
(2010 £674m), adiusted EBITDA of

£18 5m (2010 £10 3m) and adwusted
earnings per share of 6 2p 2010 4 5p)
Thus growth has been across all revenue
categories and continued the Group’s
International expansion

Particular highlights include

» the successful negotiaion of a new
Watch&Bet license penod with 35
bookmakers now licensing the service,
the majonty contracted until the end
of 2013,

= the international growth of the ePlayer,

with the product now ve In 20 temtores

and delivering over a billion streams In
the fourth quarter with & sell through
rate of 35 per cent and

= the successful acauisttion and
Integration of Goal com, the worlds
biggest football website

The Group's strategy refmans as set out
at Listing to enhance its digtal sports
nghts portfclic expand geographically
expand across new digital platforms
launch new products, and pursue
complementary acquisitons The Board
are focused on continuing to execute
this strategy into 2012

| joined the Board i January 201
replacing Andrew Croker who had
chaired the Group since 2007 In
March, Peter Willams Joined the Board
as Senior Independent Director along
with Marc Brown who joined as an
Inclependeant Director Davigl Surtees
(CFQO) was also appointed to the
Board In December Peter Parmenter
joined as an Independent Director

Finally, on behalf of the Group's Board
I wish to express my sincare thanks

to all the Group's employees for thair
comrritment and support throughout.
an incredibly busy year

Paul Walker
Non-Executive Chairman

[ Perforn Group pic Anvudt Report and Accourts 2010

Joint CEOs’
review

This has been a transformaticnal year for
Perform with significant growth in the
underiying core business which continues
to benefit from posibve structural

trends such as Increased dgital media
consumption growth in connected
device penetration, growth in online video
advertising and growth In in-play online
sports betting All of these trends are
forecast to cortinue to improve over the
next few years

In February, the Group acguired the
entire share capital of Goal com (Holdco)
S A for $330m Goal com s the biggest
football website In the world Goal com
1s avallable in 27 terntory editions in 15
different languages and leads the world
in the publishing of football news on

a globeal scale, generating over 1750
editorial stores each day In 2011 the
website averaged 24m unigue users
per menth In addition Goal com was
launched on a range of smartphones
and tablets which now attract over Sm
additional users each month

The acquisition was majonty financed by
a £17m term loan faciity Significant post
acquIsiion synergies wene aelivered by
the fourth quarter as the US management
team left the business we took over the
hosting of the website and the techrucal
site development was transferred from
the US to Pofand We look forward to
continued strong growth in 2012 with the
Eurc 2012 Champicnships and a@ number
of new terrtory editon launches




OVERVIEW

We are delighted with the progress Perform has
made since Listing on the London Stock Exchange
and we continue to successfully execute our

growth strategy.

In April the Group successiuly complated
its Listing on the London Stock

Exchange rasing net pnmary proceeds
of E697m to pursue strategic acquisitions
in order to accelerate its growth and
development We have three categories
of potential acquisiion strong single
terntory digital sports media business
which we refer to as 'local champions’
direct to consumer platforms/destinabion
sports websites (such as the Goal

com acquisizon} and complementary
products and services such as social
gaming sporis data and fantasy sports

In December the Group acquired two
related German businesses Spox Medra
Gmbk and mediasports Digital GmbH
for initial cash consideration of €3 65m
These businesses provide the Group with
an effective German managernent tearm
one of Germany's leading independent
sport websites (Spox com with over

16 millon monthly unigue users and

70 millon monthly page Imgrassions)
ond the largest independent digital
sports acvertising sales agency In
Germany In addibon, In December we
acguired the non-controlling interests n
WatchandTrade Limited for £550,0Q0
itial cash consideration and Globat
Sport Meda BV for €4 2m

We have a strong acquisiton pipeline
and look forward to completing a
nurnber of deals dunng 2012

Ollver Slipper
Joint Chief Executlve Officer

201 was a very iImportant and excrting
year for Perform Acrass the core
products the themes for the year have
been significant growth m revenues
geographical expansion, diversification
of revenues and improving the vistility
of reverues through long term contracts
Year on year revenue growth was 53
per cent (2010 39 per cent) and the
percentage of revenues generated from
outsicle the UK increased from 632 per
cent in 201010 70 per cent In 201 As at
24 February we had in excess of £90m
of revenue contracted for the 2012
financial year

The Watch&Bet service had a very
strong year with the start of a new three
year hcence perod The core service
offering was Increased to over 8,000
events per year, with some licensees
recemng cover 11 000 events as we
acquired more rights including World
Snooker, Copa America, a number of
football leagues Gncluding the Turkish
and Swedish leagues) and a range of
new WTA ATP 250 and ATP Challenger
tennis tournaments At the end of the
year the service had 35 (2010 23)
licensees Revenues for the service
remained geographically diverse with the
largest country, the UK, representing 7
per cent of the Group's revenues and no
other country representing more than 4
per cent Two kay product developments
were launched with a significant
proportion of tennis and footbalt everts
commentated on in five languages and a
mobiie version of the service launched In
the final quarter of the year

Our viddeo on demand network, the
ePlayer, had a very positive year We
ncreased the number of territones the
ePlayer was live in frorn 13 at the end of
2010 to 20 with key launches in Japan,
Korea and Turkey In the first quarter of
20N we iImplemented an upgraded player
across the network and this together
with cur geographical expansion
contributed to a significant increase in
the netwerk's glolkal audience Total
streams viewed in the final quarter of
the year increased to 1080 million (2010
Q4 282 milkor) and average monthly
unique users increased to 24m (2010 Q4
26 mllrory iImportantly across the year
our ability to monetise these streams
Improved with a headhine sell through
rate increasng quarter on quarter from
15 per cent 1n the first guarter of the year
to 35 par cent In the final quarter with
sales growing most strongly In the United
Kingdom, US and Italy

These areas were only two of many
Fighhights in what was the most exciting
ancl busy year ever for Perform and we
look forward to continuing our success
in 2012

Simon Denyer
Joint Chief Executive Officer

Ferform Group ple Arnual Report and Accounts 2011 7
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OVERVIEW

Vision and growth strategy

Perform’s vision is to become the leading global
digital sports media company by delivering

five strategic growth drivers:

Strategic drivers

Enhance Perform's
digital sports rights

For more
info please see

a8 Parform Group pic Annud Report and Accounts 2011
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Achieving our vision

In 201, the number of live events streamed grew by 40
per cent and the Group continued to add to its portfolio
of premium dip nghts Football and tennis remaned
the key sports in the Group's live events portfolic and

a number of new rights contracts were secured during
the year including Copa Armenca Turkish and Swedish
leagues and a range of WTA, ATP 250 and ATP
Challenger tennis tournaments

OVERVIEW

Performance measured

Number of live events

The Group's geographical expansion included the launch
of the ePlayer in seven new countries in 2011, including
Japan, Turkey, and Korea Local advertising sales teams
were established In France and Spain New software
development centres were estabished in Hungary and
Poland, complermenting the existing development teams
in the UK, Slovakia and Inclia

2009 5,786
2010 8,129
o 20N 1,376
o E N - 5
increase In Ive everts EEF - >0
200 versus 2010 201 1,376
Revenues by reglon (Em)
ROW loz
Mxddle East & North Afnca
Amencas
Asia Pacfic
UK 313
Europe (excluding UK)

The delivery and optimisation of Perform’s products on
connected platforms and devices 1s a key part of the
Group's strategy, ensuring c¢onsumers have the best
possble service Revenue opportunities are rmaximised
as the Group reacts to emerging trends and supplies a
range of products optimised for smart phones tablets
and connected TVs

Number of countries in which
Perform managed iFhone
applications reached number
1in the sports category of the
iPhone chart in 20N

In 201 the Group launched LIVESPORTTV, the Group's

Number of Total College

Iive streaming destination site whech streams a range of Sport streams by month
sports cormpetitions and events and Total College Sports,
a digital content network providing highlights and analysis
of US college sports distnbuted wia the ePlaver, facebook
and a nurmber of national portals Number of Total College oCT e
Sport streams in Decernber SN 5
201 (milkor) DEC 47
Perform’s acquisition strategy has 3 key pillars Monthily average humber 2009 no
« Local champions of Goal.com unique 2010 15 8
+ Direct-to-consumer platforms and desbnation sports webstes website users (million) sl 239
* Complementary products and services
In 2011 the Group acquired Goal com, Spox com NN 1 o
mediasports Digital and the remaining non-controling EEFI - <
interests In WatchandTrade and GSM in 201

Perform Groupplc Annual Report and Accounts 201 9
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OVERVIEW

Growth strategy:
Enhance Perform’s digital
sports rights portfolio

Case Study

World Snooker
partners with Perform
to deliver snooker to
new audiences online

A flve year rights deal running untll 2016 which Includes all
forms of elite, professional snooker. Perform Is the exclusive
partner for snooker via connaected platforms to a growing

global shooker audlence.
Perform wili stream over

Perform will generate a mix of content distribution, subschption BOO live World Snocker
malches per Year alross

and advertising and sponsorship revenues through the Www LIVESPGRTTV
exploitation of this content

Key deal highlights include,

« Launch of LIVESPORTTV/WORLDSNOQKER, a global
live streaming subscription service,

» Perform will stream over 800 live World Snooker matches
per year through Watch&Bet,

+ Launch of a World Snooker ePlayer channel availlable on over
1,000 publishers globally,

» Technology contract to buld and operate the official
website www worldsnocker com, and

+ Perform will act as sales agent for the display and video
advertsng inventory of the official website

Perform Group pic Annud Report and Accounts 200
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0%

Increase In ive events 2010-2011

Number of nghts properties under
contract

13

Number of professional tennis
tourmarments streamed in 201

TTIm

Mumber of Major League Basaball
videos streamed in 2011

The in¢crease In the ive and cip nghts
portfolio 1s a key strategic growth

dnver for the Group in 2011, the Group
successiully Increased the volume of

Inve events streamed by 40 per cent
cormnpared ta 2010 The Groug also
continued to acguire premium clip nghts

Football and tenrus remained the key
sports in the Groug's Iive events portfolio
and Perform secured a number of new
nghts contracts in 201 which expended
its port follo In thesa sports and consoliclated
the Group's posiion as the market leader
for the delivery of tennis and footiall over
the internet

Key football nghts acquired in 20T
included Turkish Sup Liga, Swedish
Allsvenskan, Korean K-League and
Copa Amernca

Key tennis rights deals acquired in

201 included 22 WTA Premier
tournaments, Wimbledon, WTA Dallas,
WTA Washington W TA Quebec ATP
Kitzibuhel and over 20 ATP Challenger
Tournaments

Uve events by sport

6000
5000
4000

C” 22009 EWR2010 EmE D01

OVERVIEW

The Group also continued to Increase
Its portfoho of rights In cricket, snocker
baseball handball basketball nethall,
hockey and beach volleyball

The Group has also expanded ks
portfolio of premium dip nghts Key
dormestic clip nghts secured dunng
201 includled Japanese Baseball
teague arange of US college nghts
(BIG-10 BIG EAST PACI0 ACC and
SEC) Turkish Sup Liga and a range of
International Cnicket

The Group's strategy is to continue 1o
expand the range of ive and clip rightsin
Its nights portfolio with an internal targat
of delivenng cver 12,000 kve eventsin
2012 and 4,000 1n 2013

Number of events by sport delivered
by day in 2011

2500
2000

1500 —

oy
"°°I

I Snooker

I Basketball Darts
R Squash I T ennis

N Soccer
I S0Other

Perform Group pic Arnue Report and Accounts 201 n
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OVERVIEW

Growth strategy:
Expand geographically

Americas

£6.8m
7%

Case StUdy Revenue totals
perform Iaunch for the regions:
ePlayer in USA

Followlng successful ePlayer launches In Europe In 2009 and
2010, Perform launched this Innovative product in USA in the first
quarter of 2011 The results have been very poslitive,

In late 2010, Perform cleared domestic chip nghts to a range of major
US sports properties including Major League Baseball National
Basketball League, Major League Soccer, National Hockey League
Professional Golf Assoaation Tour, NASCAR and Ulimate Fighting
Championship to supplement the Group's portfolio of iInternational
sports news and clips

Operational highlights are listed below:

« Comscore no 2 ranked online sports video iIn USA in January 2012,

« 27m average monthly unigue users in the fourth quarter of 201,

* 96m average monthly video streams in the fourth gquarter of 201

« 74 per cent advertising sell through rate in the fourth quarter of 201, and

» Distribution deals with 339 publishers including NY Dailly News, LA
Times, San Francisco Gate Chicago Tribune Boston Herald and
Sporting News on AOL

According to one forecast spending on digital video

advertising will ise sharply by over 250 per cent, from $2 billion
In 2011 to $5.4 billlon by 2016. Forester Research

$5.4bn

Estimated VOD ad spend In the US market
by 2016 (Forrester Research)

2 Perform Group pic Arvuad Report and Acoounts 2011




OVERVIEW
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Europe (excluding UK)

£312m  £423m
30%  40%

Asla Pacific

£15.5m
15%

MIIATH TVIONVNIY NV SSINISNA 1

Middle East & North Africa

£/7mM
/%

£0.5m
1%

nwumoe’ '

Koy International Highiights: Revenus by Reglon 2
« Launch of the ePlayer in seven new » ePlayer no 1 ranked for online 50 -3
markets in 2011, Induding Japan sports video in UK, France, ltaly a0 g
indonesia Turkey and Korea and Turkey No 2 inSpan and
US and No 3 in Germany 30
« Established local acvertising sales -
20 |
tearmns in France and Spain t
o]
« Software developrnent centres i
established in Hungary and Poland, 0008 2010 o
complementing existing development UK
teams in UK, Slovekia and India = _(E:;f,&fm UKo W APAC

N Arrericas  EEEEIMENA EEEEROW
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OVERVIEW

Growth strategy:

digital platforms

Case Study

Al Jazeera Sport
selects Perform
to power its multi-
platform digital
broadcast service

In 2011, Al Jazeera Sport, one of the world's leading sports
broadcasters, selected Perform to design, bulld and cperate Its
exciting new digital broadcast product

Or Novernber 1 201 to celebrate its 10th anrwversary as a sports
broadcaster, Al Jazeera Sport launched www allazeerasport.tv
across Web TV and a range of smartphone devices On each
platform, Al Jazeera Sport offers users two free global sports
channels and subscnbers in the Middie East and North Africa a
further 14 Iive sports channels together with a significant library
of videc on dermand sports content

The results have been outstanding The applications had achieved
no 1 status in the sports category In the Apple App Store In over
20 temtories

The Group provides the end-to-end production and technciogy
platform, and supports Al Jazeera Sport's dnve to grow
subscriptions for these products

In 2012 the Group will continue to roll out Al Jazeera Sport on an
array of new smartphone and connected TV platforms to keep pace
with the exciting technological developments in the delivery of video
content to connected consumer devices and platforms

Parfortn Group o Annual Renort and Accour ts 201}

Expand across new

The clelvery and optimisation of Performs
B2B and B2C products on connected
platforms and devices 1s a kay parl

of the Group's strategy ensurng end
consumers recelve the best possile
service ancd maximising the revenue
cpporturibes avalable

201 saw the emergence of competing
smartphone platforms to the Phone
such as Android, and a range of qualty
tablet devices Reaching to these new
trends the Group has launched a range
of products optirmised for new mokbile
and tablet devices Highlights include




- Launch of Goal corm on IPhone,
iPad, Androicl, RIM Nokia OVI
and Windows Phone

= Launch of www foxsoccer2go com on
tPad, IPhone and Android

= Launch of www tennistv ¢com on IPad,
and 1IPhone and

« Launch of Watch&Bet as an10S and
Android-optimised video stream on
het365

In 2012, the Group believes connected
TV platforrms will become mass
consumer products and the Group is
Ideally positioned to benefit as oniginal
equipment manufaciurers seek o
clifferennate ther services by partnenng
with digital content businesses to create
guality consumer applications

The Group's platform developrment strategy
for 2012 will include launching its own
consumer products (LIVESPORTTY,

Goal com, Spox comy and a range of B2B
and third-party consumer products on a
range of connected TV platforms This
will extend the Group’s reach to the iving
roorm opening Up new revenue
opportunifles and delivering the Group s
products whenever and wherever its
customers want them

OVERVIEW

m

Numlber of Android tablet sales
projected by 2015 (McQueen)

0%

Current penetration of
srnartphones in USA (Neilsen)

166%

Unit growth of iPad sales
year on year (Apple)

153m

Estimated number of smart TV
unit shipments globally In 2015
(Reportlinker com)
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OVERVIEW

Growth strategy:
Launch new products

Case Study

Perform breaks ‘
new ground with :
Total College

Sports launch |

Perform identifled a gap In the US consumer market for In 201 the Group launched LIVESPORTTV
an aggregator of digital college sports cllp action, debate and Total College Sports
and analysls.

LIVESPORTTV is the Group's live
The Group acquired clip nights to the main college conferences streaming destination site LIVESPORTTYV
BIG-10 and BIG-12 SEC, ACC and PAC-10, set up a studio in Chicago streams a range of leading sports
and hired a top quality production team to produce dady short form competitions and events

onginal programming
Both product launches in 201 have
In September 2011, Total Collge Sports launched airning to deliver exceeded management’s expectation
US college sports fans the best college football and basketball
action The results have exceeded expectations

Since launching Totat College Sports has become the rmost popular
ePlayer channel In the US and delivered 47m streams in Decermber 201

& Perforrn Groun pic Arnual Reoort and Accour 15 201




Key LIVESPORT.TV highlights Include

« 29 channels Iive at the year-end
including Australian Football League,
Naticnal Rughy League and Duteh
Footbali (Erechvisig)

* Global sports event Iisbings launched
in Decernber, 201 outlining alf ive
content on broadcast and internet

For 2012 management have targeted
further product launches around sports
data and soctal networking

Total College Sports
on Facebook

OVERVIEW

m

Mumber of Total College Sports

streams In Decernber 2011

46,074

Average home attendance for
NCAA's top tier bowl sub-chvision

football games in 201

Numiger of live LIVESPCRTTV

channels at the year-end

1%

Pass completion of Andrew Luck
Stanford University nol 20012 NFL

college draft pick

Perform Group ol Anndal Report and Accounts 201
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OVERVIEW

Growth strategy:
Pursue complementary
strategic acquisitions

Case Study

Perform acquires world’s
largest football portal -

Goal.com

In February 2011, the Group made a major strateglic
investment In the direct-to-consumer digital sports
market, by acquiring Goal.com, the world’s largest
football portal for $30m.

Founded in 2005 and with a network of over 400 editonal
contributors, producing 600,000 stories each year, n 15
languages and 27 editions, Goal com had built a significant
global user base averaging 16 million monthly unique users
in 2010

Despite this scale, Goal com was loss-making with poor user
monetisation due to a lack of sales resource to represent the
rmedia in key markets the significant standalone costs of its
US-based management and technology teams and the cost of
operating a large-scale technical platform for a single website

Strategically the Group's management consicered the
acquisition to be a unique opportunity to acquire the biggest
and best global digital football brand, and to utiise the
quality editonal, VOD content alreadly owned by the Group
to drive user growth and to improve the monetisation of

the site

Perform Group pic Annudl Report ana Accourits 2011

Post acquisiion the Group implemented the following
changes with the target of the business being profitable
within six months

« Integrated the advertising sales function into the Group's
existing sales teams In UK, USA, France, ltaly, Germany,
Spain and Australia,

» Embedded the ePlayer across the site

* Removed the standalone senior managerment teamn,

« Migrated the techndlogy functon from US to Katowice,
Poland,

« Migrated the site onto the Group's data centre, and

» Launched a weekly Goal TV show

This target was delivered and in addition, key performance
Indicators have continued to Improve 1n 200, average
monthly users were 51 per cent greater than in 2010, despite
there not baing a FIFA World Cup

For 2012, the strategy for Goal com includes the roll-out of
a number of new terntory editions, launch of a range of new
smartphone and connected TV vanants and improvernent
of the Iive score and footbali data elements of the site




The Group outlined the following key
pillars to its acquwsibon strategy at IPO
and this strotegy remains n place

Local Champlons: single terntory
versions of Perform typically with local
user traffic advertising sales capability
and a range of technology and content
chistribution ¢hents

Direct-to-Consumer: global sports
portals/businesses similar to Goal com
but i sports other than football

Complementary Products: digital sports
products such as sports date, sociatl
gaming and fartasy

Goal com is avallatzie
across all majer mokale
operating platforms

Goad progress was made in 201 with
Perform cornpleting the acauisiion of the
remaining non-controling interests in both
GSM and Watch&Trade In Decemiper 2011
the Group acquired two related German
digital sports media businesses

Key deal highlights included.

+ Aceurstion of one of Germany's leading
rndependent, sports websites Spoxcom

« Acquisiion of an expenenced
managemeant team who will assume
responsibility for the monetisation of
Goalcom and ePlayer in Germany and

» Acuisiion of the largest independent
digital sports acivertising sales agency
in Germany, mediasports Digital

in 2012, Perforrm will continue to deploy
the primary proceeds raised at (PO

The Group plans to make a number of
acquisitions which wiit continue to Increase
its revenue and EBITDA and expands its
capabihties and geographical reach in
order to consolidate its positon as the
giobat leader in digital sports media

OVERVIEW

m

The average monthly number of
web unigque users on Goal com
in 201

275m

The average monthly number
of impressions on the Goal com
vrebsite in 201

2.5m

Nurmnber of social followers of
Goal com on twitter and facebook

9%

Percentage of Goal com’s visits
dnven by facebook

Perform Group pic Arvwal Report and Accounts 201 9
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group is the market leader
in the commercialisation of
multimedia sports content across
a variety of digital platforms

20 Perform Group e Annual Report and Accounts 2011




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

1,576

Iy 2011, the Group ive streamed 11,376
sporting events for its Watch&Bet
custormers (2010 8129

130m

I 201, the Group managed and
produced servicos and produnts
that had a comtuned reach of
more than 130m aserage monthily
unique users globally

129%

Year on year acverbising and
sponsorship video revenue growth
(2010 19%)

3.6bn

ePlayer total video on demand
streams viewed dunng the year
(2010 11 bilhor)

Overview

The Group owns digital sports nghts
through contracts relatng o more than
200 sports leaguies tourmaments and
events Ublising its nghts portfolo, the
Group creates a range of products
combining sports videg, editonat and
data content that are distributed direct
to consumers and to business clients

In 201 the Group live streamed 11376
sporting events for its Watch8RBet
customers managed over 100 internet
deliverad video subscrnption products on
behalf of third-parties and managed and
produced services and products thal had
a combined reach of more than 130m
average monthly unigue users globally

The Groug 1s a partner to hundreds

of husinesses globally including sports
bodies nghts agencies, broadcasters,
bookmakers publishers and media
agencies Tha Group had over 640
ermployees at 31 December 201, 5
headquartered in the United Kingdom,
and has regional offices in the United
Siates Singapore, India Japan

Spain, italy, Poland, France Australia
New Zealand Norway, Germany and
the Netherlands

Advances in broadband technology,

the mass adoption of Internet-enabled
devices by consumers and continued
innovation in the digital sperts nghts and
onhine garmbling industries have provicied
the Group with greater opporiunities to
monelise its digital sports content The
Group s muttiple platform distnbution
model, mutiple revenue strearms and
global chstribution capabilities mean that
the Group is very well placed to dnve
value from its portfolio of content

Perform Group ple A nual Report and Accounts 2011 an
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Content

distribution

The Group provides ive sports

vickeo, sports news and sports

data to customers nciuding online
bookrmakers, global media companies,
mobile operators telecormmunications
companies and broadcasters

Watch&Bet 15 a major supphier of tive
sports video to online sportshooks

The service delvers live strearming of
sparts content directly to customers
through bookmakers' websites over the

nternet and via mobile networks, without

bookmakers having to invest directly in
content and technology Watch&Bet
generates revenue through fixec-term,
multi-year icences, gving the Group
iong term wvisible revenues The service 1s

at six hcensees per terntory Dunng the
yvear the service was improved and now
delivers a significant proportion of ive
events In five languages

OMNISPORT 15 a sports news product
that combimnes video, editonal, images
and data First launched in 2008 as a 26
rminute daity sports news bulletn sold
globally to broadcasters OMNISPORT s
scope and product set was significantly
expanded ond re-lounched in the fourth
Guarter of 2000 OMNISPGRT 1s now a
flexible sports news product avalable
across mulbtiple platforms (television,
chine smartphones and taklets) in

a humber of formats (Uncut, Ready,
Buttetin) and in 11 languages

G%M 15 a leading digital provider of
sports data and information to the
betting media and mobile sectors
coverng over 1,000 feagues and
competitions from 124 countries

Watch&Trade 1s a major supplier of

Iive sports videe to online sportshooks
The service delivers live streaming of
soorts content directly to traders at the
sportsbooks without the sportsbocks
having to invest directly in content and
technology The service 1s hcensed

on a non-exclusive basis

icensed on a semi-exclusve basis, capped

22 Perform Group pic Annual Report and Accounts 2071




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

[ T

Year on year ravenue growth
(2010 51%)

Number of Watch&Bet licensees
gt year end (2010 23)

1,576

Number of Iive events streamed by
Watch&Bet in the yvear (2010 8129

54

Number of Watch&Trade
licensees at year end (2010 35)

7

Nurmber of OMNISPORT
licensees at year end (20710 48)

175

Number of GSM data licensees
at year end (2010 132)

MIIAHIAO |

Year ended Year ended
Content distributlon 31 Dacembor 2011 31 December 2010
Revenue (Em) 649 411
‘Year on year revenue growth (%) 58 51 |
Percentage of overall revenues (%) 63 61

Thie maonty of the year on year revenue
Increass in content distnbution has

been due to Increased lcence fees trom
sales of the Watch&Bet service From
January 201 the Group ertered into a
new three year icensing penod for the
service This includled a number of key
changes to the licente terms nclucing
an increase in Lhe number of events each
llcensee was typically required to acquire
as part of the basic service from an
annual averagae of 5 447 events in 2010 to
an annual average of 8,038 eventsin 201
and the number of lcensees per terntory
baing increased from five to six from
four to fve in Asia)

Durnng the year 12 new icensees acqured
the service Increasing the total numkber
of icensees to 36 (2010 23) Since the
start of the year the Group also secured
nights to over 2000 additonal events
inciuding World Snooker Copa America,
a number of foothall teagues (ncluding
Turkish and Swedish) and a range of new
WTA and ATP 250 and ATP Challenger
tennis tournaments the majonty on
multi-year deals These events were sold
to arange of licensees

Live tennis onhet365 mob e
appleation de'vered as purl of
the Walch&Bat service

The majenty of new Icensees of

the service have licensed single or
multiple Blropean territories This
trend has continued the geographical
civersification of Watch&Bet revernues
with the largest territory, the UK
reprasenting 7 per cent of Group
revenues and no other terntory
reprasenting more than 4 per cent of
Group revenues

Revenues from the Group's other content
distritution products OMNISPORT, GEM
and Watch&Trade have all experenced
strong growth across the year as new
chients have inensed these products
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Advertising

& sponsorship

aPiayer streaming Ligueg 1
nighlights on Socnich a
leadirg Japarese pubbsher

The Group s advertising and cponsorship
revenues are generated from sales

of online video adverbising and
sponsorship and online display
ackvertising and sponsorship

These sales are generated via the ePlayer
the Grouwn s owned coorls websites
(Goal com, Spoxcom Soccerwaycom
and Sportal com auw) and via thnd-part
websites, nclichng the official wehsite

of the English Premier Leaghie

24 Perform Group pic Annual Report and Accourts 207

Video

The ePlayer 15 the word s largest premium
sporis video on demand network

A growing, intemational network of
pulishers enables aclvertisers o reach
and engage a giobal audience that
averaced 94 milkor unique users In the
fourth quarter of 20M

The ePlayer provicdes publishers such as
Daily Maill (United Kingdiom), New “ork
Datly News (USA) and LLEcruipe (France)
the abilty to embed a sports video player
which includes an extensive range of locally
relevant sports content within

therr websites




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

129%

Year on year advertsing and
sponsorshio video revenue growth
(2010 199%)

Year on year acdvertising and

sponsorship display revenue
arowth (2010 33%)

Numibser of iive ePlayer terntones at
year end (2010 13)

3.6bn

ePlayer total videc on demand
streams viewed cdunng the year
(2010 11 bilhior)

80m

ePlayer average monthly unigue
users (2010 25 mihion)

ePlayer annyal sell through rate
(2010 22%)

Year ended Year anded
Advertising & sponsorship (video) 31 Decamber 2011 31 December 2010
Revenue (£ m) 68 30
Year on year revenue growth (%) 129 19
Percentage of overall revenues (%) 7 4

ANSIAHINC

The ePlayer s content proposiion 1S a set
of global and tertory specific sports video
dips packaged into different branded
channels iInduding football, tenris, golf and
motorsport Approxirmately 65000 two

to three rminute sport clips were uploaded
through the ePlayer in 2011, with rmany clips
re-voicad in different fanguages specifically
for indiadual terntones

During 2011, the ePlayer launched in seven
new terntones including Japan Korea and
Turkey

These new terntanes together with the
Increased reach in existing territones
resulted in a sgnificant increase n the
network's global audience with total
strearns viewed In the final quarter of the
year increasng to 1090 mulion (2010 4
282 rillion)

linproved advertising sales in terntones
such as the United Kingdom, United States
and ltaly resuited N an improvement

in the Group’s sall through rate to 23 per
cent (2010 22 per cent)

Video KPIs

Yoar ended Year ended
Total for all territories 31 Decaember 201 31 December 2010
Total streams (milions) 3,608 1,068
Total streams sold (mukons) an 233
Average monthly urique users (mulions) 80 25
Sell through rate (%) 23% 22%
United States and United Kingdom
Total streams (mulions) 996 422
Total streams sold {(milkons) 578 154
Average monthly uruque users {(milkons) 26 L]
Sell through rate (%) 58% 36%
FIGS
Total streams (millions) 1,490 484
Total streams sold (rullans) 200 77
Average monthly urigue users (millkons) 23 8
Sell through rate (%) 13% 16%
Rest of the World
Total streams (miffions) 1120 161
Total streams sold (millons) 43 3
Average monthly ursque users (millions) n -1
Sell through rate (%) 4% 2%

Perform Groun plc Annual Report and Accounts 207 25

]
c
tn
F
m
172
n
>
1
o
o)
z
-
z
[x]
>
~
»
2
m
z

FINVNEIACD I

SLNSWILVLS TVIZNYNIL




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Advertising

& sponsorship continued

Perform represerts th e advertisng
sales for Pramuerleague com

Display

Year ended Year enced
Advertising & sponsorship (display) 31 Decomber 2011 31 December 2010
Revenue (Em) 70 37
Yaar on year revenue growth (%) a0 13
Percentage of overall revenues (%) 7 4

In February, the Group acguired

Goal com the largest football website

in the world The site offers a range of
features including footall news content,
editonal and videc footage There are
27 different terntory ecitions avalkeble in
15 languages During 201 Goal com hadd
average monthly unigue users of

24 miflion

in December, the Group acquired

Spox com the largest indeperdent sports
portal in Gerrnany The website offers
arange of features Ncuding news content
editonal anct video footage from regional
and global sports and interactive user
forurns At the encl of the vear it had
monthly unigue users of 16 miliion

26 Perform Group plc Arnaual Report and Acoourts 20T

In addition, the Group owns Sportal cormau
aleading sports portal in Australia and
New Zealand and Soccerwaycom, a
foothal portal focussed on live scores

anci statistics At the end of the year
Sportal com au had average monthly unicgie
users of 04 milion and Soccerwaycom had
2.3 milion uniquie Lsers

In addition to online cisplay revenues
generated from the Group's wholty
owried websites the Group acts as
an advertising agent for a netwaork of
third-party sports websites Including
prarmiarleague com

Drsplay revenues on the UK third-party
network declined year on year as the
Group focused on sales of its wholly
owned network and the ePlayer

Adickas - Goal com
Ballon d Or Sponsorship




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Subscription

19%

Year on year revenue growth
(2010 13%)

375k

Total video and data subscripers
at year end (2010 243,000)

1.2m

fotal apps downloaded N year
(2010 O Z million)

29

LIVEPSPORT TV channels ive
at year end (2010

Year andad Yaar endod
Subscription 31 Docambar 2011 21 December 2010
Revenua (Em) 95 8
Year on year revenue growth (%) 18 13
Percentage of overall revenues (%) 9 12

Perform generates revenue from the
management of over 100 internet
deliveraed viceo subscnption products
on behalf of football clubs (eg Chelsea
Football Club), sports bodies (eg ATP
World Tour - www tennisty com) and
broadcasters (eg Fox Sports)

The Group also has a numiber
of its own products which generate
subscrption revenues such as
LIVESPORTTY and Goal com

The increase In subscribers dunng the
year was primarily due to the launch of
LIVESPORTTY an upift in subscribers to
third-party products and the launch of
Goal com subscnption SMS products

The number of vicleo subscnbers
increased n 207 to 186,000 from
148,000 1n 2010 as a result of the Group
increasing the level of subscnption
content on offer by launching new
products for Fox Soccer, Chelsea
Football Uub and Rogers Sportsnet

By the end of the year there were

68 000 custormers subscribing to

Goad corm data services globally

Ferfarmm Group pic Annual Report and Aocounts 201 7
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Technology

& production

Chelsealc com ~ winner of the
Bast Cluty/ Team webhsite In the
Ullimate Digital Sports Awards

The Group gererates technology and
production revenues from the desgn
build and management of websites,
mokile services and products (eq for the
Football League Interactive), the ingest,
encoding scheduling and streaming of
Ive video content (eg for Fox Sports
and the Abu Dhalty Media Company), the
Ingest, encoding and disthbution of VOD
content (e g for Prernier League), and the
filming and production of iive and non-
Irve content {eg for Premiership Rughy)
Revenues grew strongly in the year
through the start of a number of new
nroduction services contracts and the
development and delivery of numerous
mobile apphcatons

Perform Group pic Annual Report and Accounts 2011

The Group 1s now contracted to manage
over 100 websites and mobile services
on behalf of third parties and has
contracts with over SC clients Key clents
are pnmanly foothall clubs and leagues
rights holders and broadcasters Durning
201 Perform won some significant new
International contracts including the
Norweglan Professional Football League
and Al Jazeera Sport and entered a new
commercial partnership with Football
League Interactive until 2015




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

28%

Year ON yedr revenue growth
(2010 339%)

47

Number of mobile ‘apps
lavinched (2010 25)

81

Number of products launched
(2010 40

22.5m

Number of average monthly
uriciue usars on third-party
websites (internet and mokbiig)
(2010 193m)

o |

MIIANIAD

Year ended Year ended
Technology & production 31 December 201 31 December 2010
Revenue (£ m} 150 ny
Year on yaar revenue growth (3) 28 33
Percentage of averall revenues (%) 15 7

For Al Jazeera Sport (the sports division
of broadcaster Al Jazeera) the Group
bult and operates the world's most
advanced live sport streaming cervice
aljazeerasport tv which makes avalable
over internet and mokile all 16 Al Jazeera
Sport’s television channels and other

Ive sports events Al Jazeera Sport 15

the largest holder of sports nights in the
MENA region with access to some of the
leading glohal sports properties including
FIFA World Cup, UEFA Eure 2012, UEFA
Champions League, UEFA Europa
League La Liga, Sene A, Ligue 1 NBA
ATP and WTA

The deat with Norway's Professional
Football League irvolves the

design build, management and
commercialisabon of 32 cluly websites
including wideo and audio players,

a central portal for the top two leagues

in Norway and a network of mobile
websites and applcations for a variety
of mobile operating platforms incluainy
10% and Android This will ensure an
innovative and flexible platform for

the clubbs and provide an engaging

and content-nch digital expenence for
Norwegian football fans

During 201, the Group co-produced
ITV's Ashes highlghts show and
produced for the Rugby Foctball Union
the O2 Inside Line a weakly, online
rnagazng programme In addition,
the Group filmed and produced 60
Premicrship Rughy games the 201
international Paralympic Commitiee
European Swimming Championships
11 Germany and filmed and prociucect
all tournaments for the Professional
Squash Association

Perform Grou pke Anrual Report and Accounts 20T 29
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial review

The Group's total revenue increased to in 200 from £10 3min 2010 The Groupy's
£107 Zrnin 201 anincrease of £358m proht after tax decreased to £3 8m from
(532 per cent) from £674inin 2010 £9 4m n 2010 pnmanly due to exceptional
Adusted! EBITDA (definad as earnings iterns relaling to the Group's Listing on the
kbefore interest, tax cepreciation and London Stock Exchange (£7 2rmy and In
arnorisation and exciucing amounts relation to the acquistion of subsidianes

in respect of the Group's jont ventures, {£18m) and exceptional share-based
share-based payments and exceptional payrment charges (£4 8rm) offseting

itermns) increased by 78 per cent to £18 5m the increase in underlying EBITDA

Summary income statement

David Surtees 201 2010
Chief Financial Officer £000 F'ooo
Revenue
Content distribution 64,943 41089
Subschption 8,535 2027
Technology and production 14,953 16831
Advertising and sponsorship (videc) 6,792 294
Advartising and spensorship (display) 6,971 34662
103,194 67,430
Cost of sales
Content (35,831} (21 540
Publisher shares (2,715) (2500
Techrical and software fees {6,221) 4 BAZ;
Production (6,947} (2205
Other {1,386} 11073
{53,100} (31,994}
Gross profit 50,094 35,436
Staff costs {24,415} {19 4i3)
Cther administrative costs (7,205} (5 678)
Adlusted EBITDA (excluding joint ventures,
axceptional items and share-based paymants) 18,474 10,345
Share of results of joint ventures - 516
Adjustad EBITDA (excluding excepticnal items
and share-based payments) 18,474 10,861
Exceptional tems (4,998) (724}
Exceptional share-based payments 4,770} -
Share-based payments (352) 411
EBITDA 8,354 10,026
Amortisation and depreciation (3,748) 222N
Amartisation of acquisibion iIntangibles (855) (3656)
Group operating profit 3,751 7433
Net finance costs (265) B
Profit before tax 3,486 7,353
Tax 25 2025
Profit atter tax 3.7 9,448

30 Ferform Group pe Annual Report and Acoour s 201



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Content Distnbution revenue increased
by £23 8m (58 per cent) to £64 9 mithion
due to the new licensing terms of the
Watch&Bot service and adchtional ive
events acquired and streamed during the
year through the Watch&Bet service

Advertising and Sponsorship (video)
revenue increased by £3 8m (129

per cent) to £6 B milion due to the

new territory launches of the ePlayer
increasing audiences and total strearms
viewed and more of these streams being
moneticed 1N particular in the United
Kingdorn United States and ltaly

Advertising and Sponsorship (display)
revenue Increased by £3 3m (80

per cent) to £E70 million due to the
acquisition of Goal corn In February
which contributed £4 Om of revenue
in 2071 Revenue generated from the
representation of third-party websites
cechned from £3 7m to £30m as the
Group focussed its sales efforts onits
wholly owned sites such as Goatcom
and Soccerway com

Subscripuon reverue iIncreased by £15m
(19 per cent) to £8 5 million due to the
Increase In the number of wideo and
clata products offerad across its chent
based products such as Fox Soccer and
tennistv com, the Group s LIVESPORTTY
product and SMS services on Goal com

Technology and Production revenue
Increased by £3 3m (28 per cent) to

£150 milhon due to a numizer of new
customers Including Al Jazeera Sport and
Norwegran Professionat Football League
and an increase N production services

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased from £320m

N 2010 to €53 1m, an ncrease of £2] Im
{66 per cent) The Increase dunng the
period was prmarly a result of the
Increased volurme and cost of content
acquired by the Group to support its
product and revenue development

Content costs increased by £14 5m
(68 per cent) to £35 8 milion due to
the Increased number of sports events
and rights acquired

Publisher shares increased by £0 Zm
(8 per cent) to £2 7 million due to the
Increased advertising and sponsorship
sales under which publishers are
contractually entitied to a share

Technical and software fees increased by
£1 4m (29 par cent) to £6 2 millien due
to the Increased number of end users,
customers, new products and

new services

Production costs increased by £4 7m
(214 per cent) to £6 S millon due to a
number of mew production contracts
the costs of mult-ingual commentary
for the Watch&Bet service editonal
content produced for Goalcom and
editorial conteryt, for the new suite

of OMNISPORT products

Gross profit

The Groups gross profit increased frorm
£35 4m in 2010 to £50 Im in 201 an
increase of £14 7m (42 per cent) Gross
profit margin was 4% per cent in 2011
cormpared to 53 per centin 2010 This
decrease was as a result of the Group
acquinng additional rights pnmanly
for the ePlayer In the United States, the
launch of the new suite of OMNISPORT
products which Impacted gross margn
in the first half of 20M

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses
increased from £28 5mn 2010 to

EAS 3rmin 2011 anincrease of £178m 62
per cent) This InCrease was primanty a
result of increased staff employed {from
an average of 3821 2010 to an average
of 5390 in 2011 and therr related costs as
well as higher accommodation costs as
the Group expanded its leased property
space and higher depreciat:on and
amortisation charges

The average cost of an employee
decreased from E51000 10 2010 to

EA1 00010 2011 Admirustrative expenses
In 201} included the smpact of excepbonat
ttems of £50 milhon relating to the Listing
and acgustions (2010 £07 millorn) and
share-based payment charges of £51m
milion 2010 £071 mallion)

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA 15 defined as earnings
before interest tax, depreciation and
amortisation and excludes amounts

in respect of the Group s joint ventures
share-based payments and exceptional
itemns and 1s considered by the Directors
to be a key measure of its financial
performance Adjusted EBITDA
increased from £10 2min 2010 to £18 5m
In 2004, an increase of £8 2m (79 per
cent) This increase was as a result of
the improved financial and operational
performance of the Group
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial review continued

Exceptional items

Dunng the year the Group incurred
exceptional costs of £€50m (2010 £07m)
relating to professional fees i respect

of the Group s corporate and strategic
developrnent including the Listing

(E3 2rm) and the acqusitions of Goal com
and Spox com mediasports Digtal and
the acquistions of the non-contraling
interests in Watchandtrade and GSM
(£18m) These costs were considered
axceptional by the Directors as they were
items that were material In size and were
unusual and Infrequent in nature

Share-based payments

The Group Incurred share-based
payrment charges of £5n (2010 £01my)
relating to the Group's Growth Securities
Ownarship Plan (GSCOP) (E4 8m) and the
Group's ongoing Performance Share Plan
(EO 4m) for senior management

Amortisation and depreclation

Arnortisation and depreqation increased
from £2 2min 2010 to £37rmin 2071

an increase of £1 5m (68 per cent)

The increase was prmaniy due to the
Increased investment in the Groups
techmical Infrastructure and software
development

Amortisation of acquisition ntangibles
ncreased from £0 4rm n 2010 to £0 8m
0 201 The increase of £0 5m was due
to the amortisation of acquired Goal com
intangbles

32

Finance costs

The Group's net finance costs Increased
from £01m in 2010 o £0 3m n 201
Investrnent incorme of £0 8m (2010
£ru) priranly related to bank interast
recewable on funds raised dunngthe
Group's IPO These were offset by
finance costs of £11m 2CI0 £OIm)
prnmaniy relating to bank interest on

the Group s borrowings

Taxation

The Group recogrised a tax credit

of £21Tm in 2010 compared 1o a credit
of £6 2min 201 The decrease In the
tax credit was primanly due to the
recogrition of a deferred tax assetin
the prior year

Profit after tax

Profit after tax decreased from £94m

to £37min 20N, a decrease of £57m

{61 per cert) Adusted profit after tax,
excluding exceplional items share-based
payrments, profit from joint ventures and
amortisation of acgquisition intangibles
increased from £101m in 2010 to £14 7rm
N 201

Eamings per share

Adjusted basic and diluted earmings per
share are based on profit attributable

to equity holders of the parent plus
excepitonal tems, share-based
payments and amortisation of acquisition
intangibles divided by the adjusted
weighted average number of Ordinary
Shares outstanding in 2011 in the penod
between Lisling and 31 Decemiber 2011

Perfomm Group e Annual Report ana Accounts 201

Adjusted earnings per share (basic and
diluted) grew by 40 per cent to 6 3p
(2010 45m)

Statutory earnings per share reflacts the
Group s statutory profit and was based
on the average numier of Ordinary
Shares outstanding in 2011 of 218 miilion
under the Group s post-Listing camital
structure (2010 197 millor) Statutory
earnings per share (basic and diluted)
decreased to14p from 4 6p

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2010 £nil)

Acquisitions/Listing

In February the Group acqured the
entire share capital of Goal com (Holdco)
S A for 330m Goal com is the higgest
football website in the world The
acguisiion was majority financed by

a £17m term loan facility

in April the Group successiully completed
its Listing on the London Stock
Exchange, raising net primary proceeds
of £697m to pursue sirategic acguisitions
to accelerate the Group s development

In Decemnber the Group acquired

two related German businesses, Spox
Media GmbH and mediasports Digital
GmbH for initial cash consideration of
£365m wath a maxmum deferred cash
consideration of €12 35 mifion payable

In December the Group acguired

the non-controlling interests in both
WatchandTrade Limited for £0 8m irwial
cash consideraton with a maximum
deferred consicleration of E5 85m
payable and Global Sport MediaBY

for €4 3m




BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital expenditure

Dunng the year the Group ~ontinued to
capitalise expenditure on addiions andl
mnprovernents to s technical software
as new functionalty and s=rvices

were developed Internal staff costs of
£2m were capitalsed in 201 (2010
£10m) Further external development
and software costs were capitalised of
£2 2rm 2010 E10m) Therefore total
intangiie asset additions were £4 3m
(2010 £20m) Thisincluded investment
i enwhancements to the ePlayer
subsenption and Watch&Bet products

The Group continued s investment
prograrnme to update and Improve the
egupment used to support its technical
hardware platforrn and invested £4 Om
curnng 2011 QO £2 1)

Of the total £8 3m (2010 £51m) invested
relating to technical developrment,
software and harcdware £4 9m (2070

£7 2m) related to investment in new
products £21m (2010 £10m) related to
adcitiona supply side capacity, £09m
(2010 £05m) related to back office and
£0 4m (2010 £0 3m) related to renewals

In addition the Group invested £04min
leasehold iImprovements and furniture
and fittngs (2010 £0 8my)

Cash flow and net debt

Cash generated from operating activities
was £152in (2010 £126m)

Cash flow used in investing activities was
34 (2010 £6 dim) of which £78m
(2010 £58m) refated to purchases

of fixed assets, £251m (2010 £07m)
related to acouisitions of subsidianes

and non-contrelbng interests and £18m
GO0 End) related to exceptional costs
attnbutoble to acqusiions These cash
ot flows were offset by FOSmof
investment iIncome (2010 £01mM)

Cash flow from finanang activities
was E779m (2010 £O 3m) of which
£697m (2010 £l represented nat
PO proceeds, £16 6m (2010 £rif)
represented borrowings (net of fees)
£32m @O0 £nil) related to exceptional
costs attributable to the IPQ The cash
in flows were offset by £4 2m related
to borrowings capital repayments and
£10m (2010 £0 3m inflow) related to
finance [ease capital repayments and
interest charges net of proceeds from
sale and finance lease backs

Clocing cash was £75 9m (2010 £16 9rm)
and closing net funds were £62 9m
OO £184my)

Prospects and outlook

The Group has made a positive start to
2012 and the business is contnuing to
performin ine with expectations and the
Diractors view the outiook for the current
financial year with confidence

The Directors believe that the demand
for the Group's products and services
will continue to Increase as a result of

is international expansion efforts the
increasing penatraton of residential
broadband connechions and smart
rhones across all markets it operates in
and the mpact of digtal technology on
the sales and marketing strategies of the
sports and media industnes The Group
15 well placed to deliver these solutions
and we will continue to kook for strategic
acausiions to strergthen our position as
the world's leading digital sports business

David Surtees
Chlef Financlal Officer
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GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

1 Paul Watker
Non-Executive Chalrman

Patil Walker was appointed to thoe Board

in January 2011 as the Company's Non-

Executive Chairman Paul served as chief

exacutive officer of The Sage Group
Ple from 1894 to Septernber 2010 Paud
has been a non-executive director of
Expenan plc since June 2010 and a
neh-executive director of Diageo Plc
since June 2002 He s currently char of
the Newcastle Science City Partnership
and s a director of the Entreprencurs
Forum Paul previously served as a non-
executive director of MyTravel Group
Pic from December 2000 to December
2004 Paul gualified as a chartered
accountant at Emst & Young having
graduated from York University with

ar econormics degree

2 Simon Denyer
Joint Chief Executive Officer

Srnon Denyer was appointed to the
Board in September 2007 The founder
of Inform Group in 2004, Simon was its
managng director until its amalgamation
wath Premium TV in 2007 to create

Perform Pror to inform Group Simon was

head of digital nghts at IMG sales drector
at Sportal and started his career in sports
meda at Haymarket Pubiishing He has

worked with maor sports nights holdersin
the explotabion of therr digital rmedha nghts

for the past 12 years Simon holds a BA
Hons in Econemics and Geography from
Loughborough University

3 Oliver Slipper
Jolnt Chlef Executive Officer

Oliver Slinper was appointed to the
Board in August 2007 He was the chiof
execttive offiner of Fremium TV unti

its amalgamation vath Inform Group in
2007 to create Perform Qliver joined
Prermium TV i 2001 as commercial
manager in 2005, Oliver was appointed
chief executive officer Prior to Premium
TV Qliver worked at Accenture within 1the
rnecha and entertanment tearn, where
ke worked for clients inciuding Cable

B Wircless NTL and Sony Playstation
achvising on digital strategies Oliver holds
a BA Hons i Classical Stuches from
Manchester University

4 David Surtees
Chief Financial Offlcer

David Surtees was appointed (o the
Board in March 201 David jeined

the Company at the start of 2008
from Shine, one of the UK s leading
inclependeant television producers,
whete he had been chief financid officer
snce Apnl 2002 Pnor to Shine David
worked at Carlton Productions for two
vears and the BBC for six years David
qualfied as a chartered accountant
with Price Waterhouse n 1993 Daad
holds a BSe Hons in Geography from
Bristol University

34 Perforn Groun po Annua Reoort and Accourts 201

S Peter Williams
Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director

Pater Willams was appointed to the
Board i March 20011 Pater was finance
director of Daly Maill and General

Trust plc 'DMGT) from 1991 until March
201 He oined the DMGT group n 1982,
having previously qualfied as a chartered
accountant with Thomson Mclintock and
worked for three years as an accountant
with Gnndlays Bank Dunng his time with
DMG T he served as a non-executive
director of Bristol Evening Post ple, GWR
Group ple Gubsequently Geap Medha plc)
and Furomoney Institutional Invector ple
He has also served as a non-executive
cirector of Ihis Media VCT1 ple since
2006 and was charman of a commatiee
of the 100 Group of FTSE 100 Finance
Dhrectors betwean 2008 and 2010

6 Marc Brown
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mare Brown was appointed to the Board
in March 201 Marc has been a mernber
of Microsoft s Corporate Development
Group since joining the company in
January 2000 Currently heis a General
Manager, Corporate Development and
Global Head of M&A and Strategic
investments Prior 1o joming Migrosoft
Marc practised corporate law at a frm

in Boston, was a high school teacher

and coach and an investrnent banker

in New York He holds a JD degree from
Georgetown University Law Center, an
MBA in finance from New York University
and a bachelor of arts m economics from
Colgate Univeraity




7 JBrg Mchaupt

Non-Executive Director

Jorg Mohaupt was appolnted to the
Board when Access industnes acauired
a maonty stake in the Company in

July 2007 Jorg 1s responsitie for the
media/oniine and telecorn businesses

at Access Inclustries which he joned in
May 2007 He was previously a managing
director of Providence Equdy Partners
Jorg has been active In the mecha and
communications space since 1392 Jorgs
current board posttions include Tory
Burch LLC Rebate Networks GmibH,
AINMT Holcings AB, RGE Group Limited,
lcon UK Distnbugion Holdings Limited
and Mendeley Research Networks Pnor
board positions Include Digiturk, Casema
NV Comhem AB Bibit BV VersaTel
Telecom NV and Speedlera Networks Inc

8 Peter Pamenter
Independent Non-Executive Director

Peter Parmenter was apnomnted to

the Board In Decernber 2011 Peter 15
Head of New Platforms and OEM at

EA Interactive a division of Electronic
Arts a global leader in digital interactive
entertainment Prior to joireng EA,

Peter held posiions at EMI Records,
Hutchison Telecoms and the Bertelsrmann
Group Peter 1s vice-charr of the Mobile
Entertainment Forum

GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE

Risk and uncertainties
Perform considers good risk management
fundamental to achieving its objectives, protecting
its reputation and delivering added value.

Macro risk
Summary Description Mitigation
Rights Competitors may outbid the Group for certain Continue to develop relationships with key
Inflation and rights or push up renewal costs nghts-holder stakeholders and continue to
renewals offer attractive commercialisation options to
Certain content holders (such as sports boches) nghts holders Rights cost inflation to be closely
may decide to commercalise their own content monitored, and, where possible, to be passed
rather than selling it on which could increase on to customers
competibon/price for avalable nghts
With less content the Group rnay face decreasing
demand for its products whilst more expensive
rights may reduce the Group’s margn
Internet The delivery of the Group's products and services These factors are largely out of Management's
infrastructure are dependent on third-party internet service control although Management will continue to
not maintained providers continuing to expand high speed monitor internet access, infrastucture and costs
Internet access and maintain rellable networks with closely
necessary speeds and capacity Changes in access
fees may adversely iImpact the ability and/or
wilingness of users to access the Group's content
Macro The Group's revenue streams are dependent These factors are largely out of Management's
economic on the disposable Income of its customers control although Management consider the
difficuities and the overall macro economic environment Group's revenue strearns to be sufficiently
(n particutar for online advertising and diverse and global that any econamic slowdown
sponsorship) Current economic difficulties in one particular economy or region should not
could adversely impact the Group's results have a maternal impact on the Greup's results
Government Any adverse government regulations of the Management closely monttor and review current and
regulation internet could Impact the Group's resuits upcoming INntermet regulations and do not curently
of the internet consicler there to be a matenal nsk given the
geographical and product diversity of the Group's
revenues
Piracy of If live sport 1s made avallable via pirates Management moniter lllegal use of sports
sports rights demand for the Group's products may decline content closely and the appropriate legal
In addition If the Group's content 1s made developrnents Management do not consider
avilable other than in accordance with the this currently represents a matenal risk to the
rights-holder contracts then the Group may Group but will conbinue to monitor this closely
face liabiltes/penalites to the nghts-holders and regularly
Dependency Any long-term postponement or cancellation These factors are largely out of Management's
on scheduling of any sparts league season may Impact the control although Management consider the
of live sport Group Group's revenue streams to be sufficiently

diverse and global that any 1ssue with one
particular sport would not have a matenal
impact on the Group's results

6 Perforrm Group oo Annual Report and Accourts 2011



GOVERNANCE

Risk management and responsibility

The Board has ulimate responsibility for the Group's nsk management

process and reviews Iis effectiveness annuatly However, on a day to day

bass, senior management 1s responsible for provicing visible leadership as
to the rmanagement of nsk and ensuring that it s integrated as appropnate
Into the Group s activities  The following table identifies the most significant

nsksidentified by the Board

Operational risk

Summary Description Mitlgating actions
Infrastructure As the Group continues to grow it will need to Management regularly review the adequacy
to support continue to suppart its systems, infrastructure of the Group's support functions and ensure
growth and back-office appropnate rescurce and capabiity to support
the Group's growth
Technology The Group I1s highly reliant on its technology The Group has put in place appropriate business
fallure platform and certain other operational IT continuity processes disaster recovery systems
systems If these systems were damaged or and secunty measures to protect against
Interrupted there could be significant costs and network and IT system failure or disruption
disruptions to the products/services offered by Management ciosely monitors performance
the Group of the platform and key systems (both housed
internally and externally) and addresses any
Issues iImmedately
Unprotected If the Group does not adequately protect Management consider that the Group currently
customer data customer account iInformation there 1s a legat has appropriate security controls i place to

nisk to the Group

protect such data although these are closely
monitored by Managerment regularly

Finance and legal

Summary Description Mitigating actions

Protection The Group's ability to compete may be harmed The Group carefidy words external contracts

of Intallectual If It 15 not able to protect its Intellectual property so as {0 protect its intellectual property nights

property nghts Its ability to compete could also be All contracts are reviewed by either the Group's

rights harmed if It is unable to use ali Intellectual In-house legal team or extemnal advisors The Group
property needed for its business monitors use of its mtellectual property

Forelgn A significant portion of the Group's revenues Management prepare cashflows by currency

exchange risk

and costs are In Euros and Dollars so the
Groug could potent:ally be exposed to adverse
movements in those currencies

and attempt where possible, to naturally
hedge the Group's cashflow Management will
carefully monitor the Group's cashflow and
consider altemative arrangements in the event
that there is a matenal unhedged exposure

Tax risk

Adverse changes In taxation could affect
the Group's results and the Group could be
exposed to various tax nsks In various countries

Management work closely with the Group's
external tax advisers, Grant Thomiton, on an
ongoing basis to mitigate its tax risks
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GOVERNANCE

Risk and uncertainties continued

Business
Summary Description Mitigating actions
Products The Group needs to develop and upgrade the Continue to closely monitor the digital sports
become functionality of its products and services and nghts and media industnes and encourage
technologically to adapt to new business environments and and reward nibiative and enterpnse across the
obsolete competiton The Group needs to develop new whole Group There is a continued focus on new
products and services to keep up to date with products and a dedcated Managing Director of
developments in the digital sports nghts and the Group' s Direct-to-Consumer has recently
medlia industnes been appomnted
Unsuccessful The Group's growth I1s dependent on expanding Management perform approprate commercial
geographic Its products and services INto new business ditgence before launching a new product/
expansion and geographic areas There are no assurances terntory and ensure that appropriate levels of
that these new areas will be profitable staff are In place to appraise and manage new
products and territories
Dependency The Group I1s dependent on Watch8Bet for Management closely monitor and review
on online a significant proportion of 1ts revenues Any the online gaming industry and regutation and
gaming significant adverse regulations introduced in do ot currently consider there to be a matenal
the gaming industry could impact the Group's nsk The Group has diverse geographical
results revenues and continues to diversify its portfolio
of products
Retention The success of the Group depends in part Management have recently implemented a
of key to its ability to continue to attract retan and Performance Share Plan to incentivise certain
employees motivate highly skilled employees key senicr staff over the longer term (3 years)
Unsuccesful Merger and acgquisihon actvity may be Management performs an appropnate level
or costly M&A unsuccessful or costly of dilgence and business planning on any
activity acquisition to ensure incremental shareholder
value I1s generated A Head of Corporate
Development was appointed in April 2001 to
lead M&A activity
28 Peartorrn Group pic Annudl Report and Accourts 201




GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report

The Drrectors present therr Annual Report together with the audited financial staterments for the year to 31 December 2011

Business Review

Perform Group plc 15 required to set out in this report a fair review of the business of the Group dunng the year to 31 December 201 and of the
position of the Group at the end of the financial year and a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties facing the Group (known as a
*Business Review”) The purpose of the Business Review 15 to enable shareholders to assess how the Directors have performed their duty under
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the Company) The Overview and Business and Financial Review
sections on pages 1 to 33 report on the activities and results for the year and give an indication of the Company’s future developments The
sections of the Annual Report referred to above, fulfil the requirements of the Business Review and are incorporated by reference and shall be
deemed to form part of this report

Principal Activities
The Company's principal activity dunng the year was that of the holding Company of a group of digital medi comparues The Group
1s the market leader in the commeraalisation of mulbmedia sports content across a vanety of digitat platforms

Revenue and profit
Revenue during the year amounted to £103 2m (2010 £674m) Profit atinbutable to equity holders of the parent was £3 1m (2010 £91my

Dividends
The Directors do not recommend that a final dvidend 1s paid (2010 £ni) No intenm dividend (2010 £nil) was paid

Directors
The names and biographical details of the Directors holding office at the date of this report are set cut on pages 34 and 35 and are incorporated
by reference into this report

At the Annual General Meeting on 17 Apnt 2012, all Directors will retire 1n accordance with the Articles of Assotiation and being eligible will offer
themselves for re-election The separate circular to shareholders incorporating the Neotice of this year's Annyal General Meeting sets out why
the Board believes these Directors should be re-elected Details of the Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment are given :in the
Remuneration Cormittee Report on pages 48 to 50

Directors’ share interests
Drrectors' holdings at 31 December 2011 in the shares of the Cormpany are shown on page 50 There were no changes to the beneficial interests
of the Directors between 31 Decernber 2011 and 28 February 2012

Directors’ insurance and indemnitles

The Compary maintains Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance which gives appropnata cover for any legal action brought against its
Directors |n accordance with section 236 of the Companies Act 2008, gqualifying third-party indemnity provisions are in place for the Cirectors
and Company Secretary 1n respect of labilities Incurred as a result of their office to the extent permitted by law

Share capital
Detalls of the authorised and 1ssued share capital together with details of movements in the 1ssued share capital of Perform Group plc are shown
In note 25 to the financial statements which 1s incorporated by reference and deemed to be part of this report

©On 18 March 2011 the Cormpany re-registered from a pnivate imited company to a public imited company

Following a resolution of the Company passed on 7 April 2011 which took effect iImmediately prior to the Listing of the Company's secunties
on the main market of the London Stock Exchange

« gach of the Company's A Ordinary Shares were subdivided, reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary Shares,

« each of the Company's B Ordinary Shares were subdivided, reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary Shares,

+ gach holding of the existing Preference Shares were consolidated into one preference share

» these Preference Shares were subdivided, reclassified and redesignated into in aggregate 21132 432 new Crdinary Shares and 1,380 354048
deferred shares of 2 and 7/8ths pence each in the capital of the Compary, and

« the Cormpany aliotted a further 28 Om Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each

Following the share re-organisation and Listing the Company's share capital compnsed 225,376 072 new Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/8ths pence
The Company receved proceeds net of bank fees and costs, of E69 7m (gress pnmary proceeds were £725m)

On 21 June 201 the Company cancelled, at no cost, all of the deferred shares created on Listing The deferred shares did not entitle the holders

to any dividends or distnibution and were onty able to be transferred by the Company A capital redermption reserve of £38 3m was created
as a result
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’' Report continued

As at 31 December 2011 the Company had 225 376 072 Ordinary Shares inissue The Company does not hold any treasury shares

The Company will be subject to the continuing obligations contained in the Listing Rules with regard to the 1ssue of Ordinary Shares for cash
The provisions of secon 561(1) of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act™) twhich confer on shareholders nghts of pre-emption In respect of the
allotment of equity securites which are or are to be, paid up In cash other than by way of allotment to employees under and employees’ share
scheme as defined 1IN section 1166 of the Act) apply to the 1ssue of shares in the capital of the Company except to the extent that such provisions
were disapplied as set out in the Company's Prospectus

The Company may by ardinary resclution increase consolidate or subject to the Act sub-divide its share capital The Company may by ordinary
resolubion also cancel any shares which at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any

person and dirnirish the amaount of its authonsed share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled Subject to the provisions of the Act
the Cormpany may by special resolution reduce its share capital caprtal redemption reserve and share premium account In any way

Subject to the Act and without prejudice to any relevant special nghts attached to any class of shares, the Company may purchase
any of its own shares

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors the Company 1s governed by its Articles of Association the Corporate
Governance Code 2010 the Companes Act 2006 and related legislation The Articles of Association may be amended by special resclution of
the shareholders

Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 January 2011, the Company had been notified under Rule 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the following major interests
N 1its 1ssued ordinary share capital

Number of Ordinary Shares % of total voting Hghts
Premium TV Group 101,865,876 4520
Simon Denyer 27518088 22
John Gleasure 1221 342 538
Legal and General Investment Management 8038 367 357
Baille Gifford & Co 7336 207 126

Interests in own shares
The Company does not hold any of its own shares

Charitable donations
During the year to 31 December 201 the Group donated £10 000 to chartable causes nclucing Save The Children, John Hartsen's Foundation,
Roger Federer's Foundation and Urdd Sports Department who organise sporting activities for children all over Wales

Political donations
The Company made no political donations dunng the year

Employment policles

Equal opporturitres

The Group's policy 1s always to ensure that all persons are treated fairly irrespective of their age race (including colour, nationality ethnic

or national ongins), sexual onentation disability gender including gender reassignment religious beliefs or political opinion trade union
mernbership or non-membership, mantal and physical or mentat status or any other faciors including pregnancy and maternity The Group
endeavours to provide those who have physical or mental disabilities with equal opportunities in the application and recruitment process
and specific assistance and arrangements (iIncluding traning career development and promotion arrangements) to enable themn to work
for us wherever and whenever this 1s reascnably pracucable

Health and Safety

The Group 15 committed to providing a consistently safe and effective working environment for all staff, inciuding contractors, customers

and members of the public Indoing so it will as a minimum, comply with local health and safety legislation, but will exceed those requirements
should It be necessary 10 do 50 The Group has a Health and Safety Policy avalable to all employees and applied to the Group’s business
operations wordwide The Health and Safety Policy sets out the organisation and arrangements for achieving and maintaining adequate
standards of health and safety at work throughout the Group
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Overalt Group health and safety s the responsibility of the Chief Operating Officer Each Executive member of the Group Board s responsible
for gving appropriate consideration to the health and safety implications ansing out of decisions or proposals made within the remit of their
respective areas of corporate responsibilty

For subsidiary companies health and safety 1s the responsibility of the Managing Directors who will establish appropnate and effective systems
and arrangements to ensure compliance and to achieve the corporate objechves

All employees are expected to exercise personal responsibiity in preventing injury 1o themselves and others and (o co-operate with
management in complying with health and safety legislation

Employee Involvement

Ernployee communication

The Group believes that employee commurnication 1s important in building strong relationships with and in motivating and retainng employees

The Group makes use of various methods and channels Including face to face briefings open discussion forums with sentor management email

and corporate internet to ensure that matters of interest and iImportance are conveyed to and heard from employees guickly and effectively and
that all employees are aware of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Compary

Ernplovee share schermes

The Group recognises the iImportance of good relationships with employees of all levels Dunng the year the Group implemented a Performance
Share Plan for senior management Further details of this scheme are set out In note 26 to the financial statements The Group intends to
implement a Company Share Option Plan and a Sharesave Scheme in 2812

In March 2010, the Group put In place a Growth Secunties Ownership Plan (“GSOP™) under wiuch certaim key non-shareholding employees were
given the opportunity te purchase a financial instrument which tracked the Company’s market capitaisation for a peried ending mn April 2012
(being one year after the Group's admission to the London Stock Exchange) Further details of this scheme are set out In note 26 to the

financial staternents

Environmental policy
During the year the Group recycted 16 040kg (2010 8 270 ka) of paper which equated to CO, savings of 22,830kg (2010 1710 ko)
with recycling per employge of 4 kg/week (2010 2 kg/week)

The Group is currently working with Carbon Smart to

» measure ervironmental impacts to report performance internalty, benchmark the ergarusation and tanget improverments based on a
realistic baseline,

* receive support In developing and implementing practical low or no cost actions for improving envirenmental performance and

+ assistance In engaging staff to ensure that improved environmental performance becomes part of the everyday work environment

Financial Instruments

The Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies are set out within note 22 to the financial staternents Note 22 also detalls the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange interest, crecit and quicity nsks These notes are incorporated by reference and are deemed to form part
of this report

Creditor payment policy
For alt trade creditors 1tis policy to

» agree and confirm the terms of payment at the commencement of business with that suppher

« pay In accordance with contractual and other legal obligations and

« continually review the payment procedures and liaise with suppliers as a means of eliminating difficulties and maintaining a good
working refationship

The Company’s trade creditors at 31 December 201 were £277000 (2010 £70000)

Significant contracts - change of control

In the event of a change of control awards made under the Group's Performance Plan ("Award™) will vest Unless otherwise determined by
the Remuneration Committee, the proportion of an Award which vests shall be calculated by reference to the achievement of performance
conditions at the date of the corporate event reduced pro rata to take account of the penod from the date of Award to that event In addition
the Remuneraticn Committee may take Into account other factors, iIncluding but not imited to the performance of the Company, and the
interests of Shareholders
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Directors’' Report continued

Alternatively, In the above circumstances the Rernuneration Committee may permit or require Awards to be exchanged for new awards
of shares In the acquirng Company on a comparable basis

Essential contracts
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with suppliers of goods and services incduding a vanety of content nights-holders
Whilst these arrangements ara smportant to the Group individually none are them are essential to the business of the Group

Auditors
In accordance with section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Company's Directors tn office as at the date of this report
confirms that

« 50 far as the Director 1s aware there s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and
* he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director In order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

The Group's auditors are Grant Thornton UK LLP A resolubon to re-appont Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors to the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Note 4 1In the financial staterments states the auditors' fees for both audit and non-audit work

Going Concern

The Group's business actvities together with the factors hikely to affect its future development perforrance and position and set out In the
Overview and Business and Financial Review sections on pages 1 to 33, along with detalls of the Group's cash flows lquidity positton and
borrowing faciiies Financial sk management objectives details of financial iInstruments and hedging activities, and exposures to credit risk and
guidity are described in note 22 to the financial statements

The Directors have reviewed the Group's forecasts and projections These include the assurmptions around the Group's products and markets
expenditure commitments and expected cash flows Taking into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, and after making
enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate rescurces to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable future Accordingly they consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis (n preparnng the Annual Report and Accounts

Annual Goneral Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Company's offices at Hanover House, Plane Tree Crescent, Feltham, TWI3 7JJ
commencing at midday on Tuesday 17 Apnit 2012 The Notice of this year's Annual General Meeting s included in the separate ar¢ular to
shareholders The Notice 1s available to view under the "Investors” section of the Company's website www performgroup com

By order of the Board

David Surtees
Commpany Secretary
Registered Office
Sussex House
Plane Tree Crescent
Feltham

TWI3 7HE

Registered number 6324278
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board 1s committed to high standards of corporate governance which it considers to be central to the effective management of the
business and to mamntaining the confidence of investors The Group complies with the laws and endeavours to observe the customs and culture
in the countries in which it operates and does business The Group expects all Directors and employeas to dnve to achieve the highest standards
and to act with respect and integrity The Board monitors and keep under review the Company's corporate governance framework

In accordance with the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty, the Company confirms that throughout the penod from Listing to

31 December 2011 1t complied with the relevant provisions set out in Section 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 ("the Code™ with
the exception of B12 of the Code which specifies that at least half the Board, excluding the chairman should comprise non-Executive Directors
determined by the Board to be iIndependent

The Company does not currently comply with this provision For the penod between Listing and 14 December 207 it only hadt two Non-
Executive Directors (Peter Wilkams and Marc Brown) excluding the Non-Executive Chairman (Pall Walker) determined by the Board to be
independent Jérg Mohaupt 1s not considered to be independent due to his affilation with Premium TV Group the majonty shareholder in
the Company On 14 December 2011 the Company appointed Peter Parmenter as an additional Non-Executive Director The Board consider
Mr Parmenter to be independent The Board will continue to search for an additional independent Non-Executive Director partly to move
towards full compliance with the Code

This report together with the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 48 to 50 provides detalls of how the Company has applied
the principles and complies with the prowisions of the Code

The Board

The Board 1s collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company The Board provides leadership for the Group and
concentrates its efforts on strategy, performance, governance and internal control As at the date of this report the Board has eight
members. the Non-Executive Chairman (Paul Walken), the joint Chief Executive Officers (Simon Denver and Qliver Slipper), the Chief
Financial Officer (Dawid Surtees) three independent Non-Executive Directors (Peter Wilkams, Marc Brown and Peter Parmenter) and one
Non-Executive Director (Jérg Mohaupt)

The biographical details of each of the Directors and details of their membership of the Board's committess are set out on pages 34 to 35
The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserve to it for decision and approve which include but are not hmited to

+ the Group's business strategy
« annual budget and operating ptans

:
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+ major capital expenditure and acquisiions §
* the systems of corporate governance internal control and nsk managerment ";"
+ the approval of the ntenm and annual financial statements and Intenm management statements and ]
« any intenm dividend and the recommendation of any final dividend s
The Board held five scheduled meetings dunng the penod from Listing until the year-end The Group's strategy was regularly reviewed
All Orrectors participate in discussions relating to the Group's strategy. financial and trading performance and nsk rmanagement The Board
considers it met sufficientty often to enable the Directors to discharge their duties effectively
The table below gives details of Directors' attendance at Board and Committee meetings between the Group's Listing and
31 December 201
Audit Remuneration Nomlnation

Board Committee Committee Committee
Paul Walker 55 - 2/2 11
Simon Denyer 5/5 - - -
Olwver Shpper 5/5 - - _
David Surtees 5/5 - - - l 2
Peter Willams 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/i %
Marc Brown 5/5 5/3 2/2 1”1 £
Jorg Mohaupt 5/5 - - - n
Peter Parmentert? - - - - ,5,'1
{)) Peter Parmenter was appointed a Non Executive Director on 14 December 2011 and was apponted to each of the Audit. Nominaton and Remuneration Committees on that date g

At the request of any Non-Executive Director, the Non-Executive Chairman will arrange meetings consisting of only the Non-Executive Directors
to allow the opportunity for any concerns to be expressed Dunng the penod from Listing to 31 December 201 the Non-Executive Chairman
maintained regular contact and met the Non-Executive Directors
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Board 1s chaired by Paul Walker The non-exeuctive Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and its effectivenass Simon Denyer and
Oliver Shipper are joint Chief Executive Officers and are jointly responsible for the execution of strategy and the day-to-day management of the
Group The dmasion of roles and responsibilities between the Non-Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officers are formally set out in
wnting and agreed by the Board

Board balance and independence
Paul Walker Peter Willams, Marc Brown and Peter Parmenter are in the opinion of the Board, independent of management and free from
any business relationship which could materally interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

As set out above the majority of the Board (excluding the Charrrman) do not compnse independent Non-Executive Directors The board wall
continue to search for an additional Independent Non-Executive Director partly to move towards full compliance with the Code

Board appointments

Board norminations are recommendad to the Board by the Nomination Cornrmittee under its terms of reference All Directors are subject to
election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting following therr appointment and thereafter to re-election at least once every three years
In line wath the Company's Articles of Association and provision A 710of the Code

Information and professional development
Cn appointment Independent Directors receive a full, formal and talored induction including meetings with members of the management team
and briefings on particular issues

As an ongoing process, Directors are briefed and provided with information concerming major developrnents affecting therr reles and
responsibilities |In particular, the Directors' knowledge of the Group's worldwide operations 1s regularly updated by arranging presentations
from senior management throughout the Group

The Non-Executive Chairman works closely with the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board 1s supplied in a timely manner with
inforrmabion in a form and of a quality appropnate to enabla it to effectvely discharge its duties Where there are occasions when Directors
are unable to attend a meeting they have the opportunity to review meeting papers and submit comments to the Non-Executive Chairman
Directors are also supplied with a monthly Chief Executive Officer report and a monthly financial report which provides the Board with
information on operational and financial performance and the Group's business plans

All Drrectors are able to consult with the Company Secretary The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 15 a matter reserved
for the Board as a whole Directors may obtain in the furtherance of their duties, independent professional advice if necessary at the Group's
expense In addition all Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and all senior management

Board performance gvaluation

The Board recognises that it 1s required to undertake a formal and ngorous review of its performance and that of its committees each financial
year As the Board, and its committees have been in operation for less than a year at the date of this report no formal review has yet taken place
The first formal review of the effectiveness of the Chairman, the Board and its vanous committees will take place during 2012 and the results

of this review will be presented in the Company’s Annual Report for the year to 31 December 2012

Committees
The Board 1s supported by a number of committees including the following principal committees. Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee All the independent Non-Executive Directors are members of each of the principal committees of the Board

The terms of reference of each of the principal committees are available on request by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered address and are available on the Group's website www performgroup comy/boardcomrmittees

The Committees if they consider It necessary, can engage with third-party consultants and independent professional advisors and can
call upon other resources of the Group to assist thern in developing therr respective roles
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four independent Non-Executive Directors:
The table below gives details of Directors' attendance at Audit Commmittee meetings between the Group's Listing and 31 December 2071

Audit

Committee

Peter Willams (Chair) 3/3
Marc Brown 3/3

Peter Parmenter® -

(1) Peter Parmenter was appointed a Non-Executive Director on 14 December 2071 and was appointed to each of the Audit Nomination and Remuneration Committees on that date

The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out In written terms of reference
The Audit Committee is responsible for

« reviewing financial statements and formal announcements relating to the Group's performance,

» reviewing the Group's iInternal financial controls and nsk management systerns,

* assessing the independence, objectivity and effectivenass of the external auditors

« developing and implementing policies on the engagement of the external auditors for the supply of non-audit services

» making recornmendations for the appointment, re-appointrment and removal of the external auditors and approving ther remuneration
and terms of engagement, and

= reviewing arrangements by which empiloyees may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible impropnebes in matters of financial
reporiing and other matters

The Board 1s satisfied In accordance with the provisions of the Code that at feast one member of the Audit Committee has recent and relevant
financal expenence, given the nature of the senior management positions previcusly held by Peter Williams and Paul Walker (see biographical
detalls on pages 34 to 35)

The Audit Committee met three times during the year The attendance record of Committee members 1s recorded in the table above At the
nvitation of the Charman of the Audit Committee, the Jont Chief Executive Officers the Chief Financial Officer and the Group's external
auditors regulanly attend meetings

The Audit Committee 1s responsible for reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Group's internal control procedures and nisk
management systems The Audit Committee s also responsible for assessing whether the Group regquires an internal audit function The Group
does not currently have an internal audit function Given that most of the Group s financial functions are currently centralised, such a function

ts not considered appropnate This will be reconsidered as the Group grows and decentralises Its operations

The Audit Committee was presented by the Group’s Management with a presentation of the Group's current iInternal control procedures and
nsk management systerns and following due consideration the Audit Committee was satisfied that the current arrangements and the Group's
internal controls and nsk management systems were appropriate

In addition, the Committee reviewed the adequacy of the "whistle-blowing” arrangements in place to enable ermployees to raise in confidence,
any concemns they may have The Committee Is satisfied that such arrangements remain appropriate

Whilst the Audit Committee is satisfied with the qualification expertise resources and Independence of the external auditors as the external
audit of the Group's results for the year-ended 31 December 2011 was its first since Listing, the Audit Comimittee has not yet reviewed the
effectiveress of the external audit process The Audit Committee intends to review the effectiveness of the external audit process during 2012
and will report its conclusions in the Company’s Annual Report for the year to 31 December 2012 The Committee also reviewed the proposed
audit fees and terms of engagement for the year to 31 December 2011 and has recommended to the Board that it propose to shareholders that
Grant Thormton UK LLP be re-appointed as the Group's external auditors

The Committee recognises that the independence of the auditors 1s an essential part of the audit framework and the assurance that it provides
The Committee monitors the types of non-audit work that are undertaken by the external auditors to ensure that their objectivity and
independence i1s not corpromised Any significant proposed non-audit assignments require prior approval and the Committee recerves a report
at each meeting providing detarls of non-audit assignments carned out by the external auditors in additon to therr normal work

Detatls of the fees paid to the external auditors dunng the financial year ¢an be found In note 4 to the financial statements
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four independent Non-Executive Directors
The table below gives detaills of Directors' attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings between the Group's Listing and 31 December
20N

Remuneration

Committee

Paul Watker 2/2
Peter Wilhams 2/2
Marc Brown (Chair) 2/2

Peter Parmenter® -

{1y Peter Parmenter was appointed a Non-Executrve Director on 14 December 2011 and was appamted to each of the Audt Nomnaton and Remuneration Committees on that date

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for

Considering and evaluating remuneration arrangements for senior managers and other key employees and making recommendations to
the Board Its purpose 15 to support the strategic ams of the business and shareholder interest by enabling the recruitment motivation and
retention of key employees while complying with the requirements of regulatory and gevernance bodies

The report of the Remuneration Committee is set out on pages 48 to 50

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four independent Non-Executive Directors
The table below gives details of Directors’ attendance at Nomination Committee meetings between the Group's Listing and 31 December 201

Nomination
Committee
Paul Walker (Chair) 11
Peter Wiillams 172
Marc Brown 11

Peter Parmenter® -

(M) Peter Parmentar was appointed a Non Executive Drector on 14 December 201 and was appointed to each of the Audt. Nomnation and Remuneration Committees on that date

The Nomination Committee is responsible for

Reviewing the balance and composition of the Board and its committees and for identifying and recommending appointments or renawal
of appointments to the Board These regular reviews ensure that the Group and the Board are able to draw from a complementary balance
of skills and experence and there s 1n place an appropriate plan for orderly succession to the Board The procedure for appointments 15 set
out In its terms of reference

During 2012 the Normination Committee intends to consider and review the Group's succession planning arrangements and the Board's
Performance Evaluation

The Nomination Committee met once during the period from Listing to 31 December 2011 The table above gives details of Directors’ attendance
at these meetings

The terms and conditions of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are avallable for inspection at the Company's registered address

Corporate Responstbility
Detalls of the Group's approach to Corporate Responsibility are set out on pages 40 to 41

Accountability and audit

The Board acknowledges that it should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects In this
context reference should be made to the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement on page 51 which includes a statement in compliance with the
Code regarding the Group's status as a gong concern and to the Independent auditor's report on page 52 which includes a statement by the
auditors about their reporting responsibiibies The Board recognises that its responsibility to present a balanced and understandable assessment
extends to ntenm and other price-sensitive public reports and reports to regulators as well as information required to be presented by law
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Intemal control

The Board acknowledges that it Is responsible for the Group's systemn of internal control and the Audit Committee reviews its effectiveness
Such a systemn 1s designed to manage rather thaneliminate the nsk of falure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss The Audit Cornmittee has reviewed the effectiveness of the key procedures which have been
astablished to provide internal control As part of the process that the Board has In place to review the effectiveness of the internal control
system there are procedures designed to capture and evaluate fallings and weaknesses, and in the case of those categonsed by the Board

as significant procedures exist to ensure that necessary achon 1s taken to remedy the fallings

tn accordance with the revised guidance for Directors on internal control (“the Revised Tumball Guidance”) the Board confirms that there

Is an ongong process for identfying evaluahng and managing the sigrificant risks faced by the Group These include those relating to social
environmental and ethical matters This process was In place throughout the period from Listing to 31 December 201 and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts The procass will be regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee which will report its findings
for consideration by the Board and 1s in accordance with the Revised Turnball Guidance The key procedures operating within the Group
were as follows

+ during the year the Audit Committee met to evaluate nsk and consider the appropnateness of the Group's nsk assessment systems and
internal control policies

« the Group consists of a number of divisions each with its own managerment structure which forms part of the overall management structure
of the Group The senior executives of these units report to the Executive Directors on a monthly basis

« the Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary and re-forecasting control, focused on monthly performance reporting which 1s at
an appropriate detalled level A summary of reports supported by commentary and performance reasures 1s presented to the board each
month The performance measures are subject to review to ensure that they provide relevant and reliable indications of business performarnce,

« the Group has established procedures for the delegation of authonty

» the Group's divisions operate within a framework of poticies and procedures which are laid down in policy and procedure manuals and cover
key 1ssues such as authorisation levels, and

« the Group has established policies and procedures designed to ensure the maintenance of accurate accounting records sufficient to enable the
preparation of financial statements, and consolidated financial statements In accordance with the financial reporting frarmeworks applicable to
the Group

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining good communications with its shareholders and does this through the Annual Report,
preliminary and interim announceaments Interm management statements and the Annual General Meeting In addition one of the Joint Chief
Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer make presentations to institutional shareholders and analysts immediately following the release
of the preliminary and intenm results These presentations are made available on the Company's website www performgroup com

The Non-Executive Directors are avallable to meet with major shareholders to discuss 1ssues of importance to them should a meeting
be requested

Annual General Meeting

Veting at the 2011 Annual General Meeting will be by way of poll The results of the voting at the Annual General Meeting will be announced
and detalls of the vates will be avalable to view on the Company's website www performgroup com as soon as possible after the meeting
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Remuneration Committee considers and evaluates remuneration arrangements for senior managers and other key employees and
makes recommendations to the Board The purpose 1s (o support the strategic aims of the business and shareholder interest by enabling the
recruitrment motivation and retention of key employees while complying with the requirements of regulatory and governance bodies

The Committee’s report, which 1s unaudited except where indicated 1s set out below

The Committee

The Committee held two meetings dunng 2011 both chaired by Marc Brown Peter Willlams and Marc Brown are members of the Committee
and participated (n both meetings The members of the Committee have no personal interest :n the outcome of ther decisions and give due
regard to the interests of shareholders and to the continuing financial and commercial health of the business

Remuneration Policy

The policy of the Board 1s to attract retain and motivate the best managers by rewarding thermn with competitive compensation packages
Iinked to the Group's financial and strategic objectives The components of remuneration for Executive Directors currently compnse base salary,
benefits, bonus and participation in the Group's Performance Share Plan

Base salary

The Group aims to provide salaries which are fair and reasonable In cornpanson with companies of a simular size, Industry complexity

and international scope When making salary determinations, the Committee takes into account not only cornpetitive performance but also each
executive's individual performance and overall contribution to the business dunng the year

Annual bonus

Bonuses are currently based on performance against the Group's strategic and financiai objectives and provides for an on-target bonus
opporturity of 25 per cent of salary subject to the achievernent of financial performance targets Actual bonus awards are subsect to the
ciscretion of the Committee

Benefits
Benefits for Executive Directors include private medical insurance, death in service cover, childcare vouchers and matching contributory
pension contnbutions

Perforrnance Share Plan
See note 26 to the finanoal staterments for details on the Performance Share Plan

Service Contracts

Each Executive Director's service agreermaent 15 terrminable by ether party on 12 months' notice The Company has the ability to terminate the
agreement by the payment of a cash sum in leu of notice equal to (1) his salary and (i) the cost to the Company of providing medical cover
The payment In leu of notice does not mnclude pension or bonus The payment can at the Company’s discretion, be paid as a lump sum or in
equal monthly instalments over the notice penod There 1s a mechanism to reduce the payment in lieu of notice where the Executive Director
commences alternative employment paying more than £20 000 per annum Where the Compary elects to make a payment in heu of notice
the Executive Director 1s required to use reasonable endeavours to find alternative paid employment

Audited Information

Executive Directors’ rernuneration”

Other Aggregate Pension
Salary Bonus benefits®+ emoluments  contributions
£'000 £'000 €£'000 £'000 EQO0
Simon Denyer
Year to 31 December 2011 253m 57 2 n2 1@
Year to 31 December 2010 231 58 1 280 -
Oliver Slipper
Year to 31 Decernber 2011 253® 57 2 32 -
Year to 31 December 2010 231 58 1 290 -
David Surtees
Year to 31 December 201 2ne 48 1 260 ne
Year to 31 December 2010 193 48 i 242 0o

W Simon Denyer (from December 2011 and Dawvid Surtees (for the whole year) participate in the Group's salary sacnifice scheme and accordingly elected to sacnfice
S per cent and 10 per cent of their salanes respactively which 1s contributed directly to the Perform Group Personal Pensien Plan Thelr salanes are presented
gross of the amount sacnficed Ohver Sipper participated in the Groups' childeare voucher scheme between January and July 201 and for that peniod of ime
elected to sacnfice £243 per month His salary 1s presented gross of the amount sacrificed

2 The Group makes an annual contribution equal to 5 per cent of Simon Denyer's and Dawid Surtees's salanes to the Group Persona Pension Plan as described above

& Beanefits relate to private medical insurance and death in service cover

@ Oiiver Shpper's other benefits also indude the childcare vouchers referred to in ™ above Simon Deryer's other benafits also include income protection insurance
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Non-Executive Directors®
The Non-Executive Directors serve under Contracts, and have received fees in 2011 as detailed in the table below

Contract dated 2011 Fees £'000 2010 Fees £'000
Paul Walker 10 January 201 146 -
Peter Wilhams 9 March 201 45 -
Marc Brown 9 March 201 39 -
Jérg Mohaupt 23 March 201 39 -
Peter Parmenter 14 Dacember 201 2 -

Paul Walker 1s entitled to receive an annual fee of £150 000 His appointment 15 terminable by either party aving to the other three months' written
notice or at any bme I accordance with the Articles or the Act His letter of appointment states that his appantment 15 expected to last at least
three years The Company has the ability to terminate his appomntment by the payment of a cash sum in lreu of notice equal to the fee payable
for any unexpired portion of the notice period

The appointments of Peter Willams, Marc Brown and Peter Parmenter are for a term of three years Jérg Mohaupt has been a member
of the Board since 2007 but entered into new terms of appointment with the Company on 23 March 2011 which s for a term of three years
Mr Mohaupt 1s appointed to the Board by the Major Sharehoider pursuant to the terms of a Relationship Agreement

The appointments of Peter Willams, Marc Brown Peter Parmenter and Jorg Mohaupt are subject to re-election when appropnate by the
Company In general meeting

Each of Peter Willlams, Marc Brown Peter Parmenter and Jérg Mohaupt 1s entitled to recerve an annual fee of £48 000 Therr appointments may
be terminated at any ime upon wntten notice or in accordance with the Articles or the Act or upon therr resignations In addition to the annual
fee shown above, Peter Willams 1s entitied to an additional fee of E7.000 as Senior Independent Director and Chairrnan of the Audit Committee

Paul Walker and Pater Willams each acquired Ordinary Shares on the Company's Admission to the London Stock Exchange at the Cffer Pnice
frorn thelr own funds in the amount of £150 Q00 and £25 000 respectively The disposal of any Ordinary Shares by any Director will be subject
to the Company's code on Directors’ dealings in securibes

The Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are entited to rembursermnent of reasonable expenses in connection with the discharge of their duties

The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receive any compensation on termination of their appointment and are not entitled to participate
in the Company's share bonus or pension schemes

Performance Share Plan ("PSP")*

Under the PSP which was introduced in June 2011 executives may be awarded performance shares up to a maxirmum value of one and a half
trmes base salary The vesting of the Award 1s dependent on the achievernent of stretching revenue and adjusted earnings per share ("EPS")
growth targets which reflect the Group's strategy and long-term objectives The exact amount of shares receved in vesting 1s based on a matnx
of these targets

The Remuneration Committee granted performance shares to Executive Directors and certain senior management on 24 June 201t The value of
the Award was calculated by reference to the closing market price of an Ordinary Share on the dealing day preceding the date of grant.

Under the award If compound revenue growth over the 3 year period to 31 December 2013 does not exceed 25 per cent and cormpound
adjusted EPS growth over the same period does rot exceed 35 per cent no shares will be awarded The exact number of shares that will be
awarded 15 dependent on the revenue and adjusted EPS matnix

The Award vests three years from the date of grant are subject to the certain performance ¢ntena set out above
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

The interests of the Executive Directors in Ordinary Shares subject to awards under this plan as at 31 December 2011 were as follows

Number of Ordinary Shares

As at Granted As at 31
Date of 1.January during Decembaer Vesting
grant 0M the year® 20M date™
Simon Denyer 24 June 201 - 174 041 174041 24 june 2014
Oliver Shipper 24 June 20N - 174,041 174041 24 June 2004
David Surtees 24 June 201 - 145034 145,034 24 June 20i4

O Subject to performance testing

@ The closing pnce of Perfarm Group plc shares on the date of the award (24 June 201 was £219

Directors’ Interests*

On 18 March 2011 the Company re-registered from a private imited company to a publc imited company Before the re-registration certain
Directors owned preference, A and B shares in Perform Group plc The interests of the Directors in these preference, A and B Shares, as at
31 December 2010 and imrmediately prior to the Company's re-registration are set out below

Preference Shares A Shares B Shares
Simon Denyer 6 317569 701,952 72974
Cliver Slipper 1,006 239 mao4 72974
Dawvid Surtees 92030 10,227 46 995
Jorg Mohaupt 167004 18 556 -
Andrew Crocker (resigned 17 March 201 234000 26,000 69,31

Following a resoluticn of the Company passed on 7 April 200 which took effect immediately pror to the Listing of the Company’s securties on

the maim market of the London Stock Exchange the Directors’ Preference A and B Shares were subdivided, reclassified and redesignated as

Ordinary Shares in Perform Group pic The interests of the Directors in these Ordinary Shares (excluding share awards which have not yet vested

under the PSP) are

Holdings of Ordinary Shares
as at 51 December 2011

Holdings of Ordinary Shares
as at 7 April 201

Stmon Denyer
Olver Slipper
David Surtees
Paul Walker
Peter Willams
Jorg Mohaupt

27518088 27518088
6 325,576 6325576
1576976 1576976
136,640 136640
9615 9615

568 620 568 620

The market price of an ordinary share on 30 December 2011 (the last dealing day of the financial year) was 208p The tughest and lowest market

prices of an ordinary share between 7 Apnl 2011 and 31 December 2011 was 150p and 234p respectively

Audit Statement

In their audit opinion on page 52, Grant Thornton UK LLP refer to thesr audit of the disciosures required by Schedule 8 to the Regulations These

compnse all sections pre-fixed with an asterix (%)

Basis of preparation and approval of report

This report, which constitutes the Directors’ Remunerahon Report, has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 11 and Schedule 8 of the Large

and Medium-5ized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty

As reguired by the Companies Act 2006 an advisory resolutron to approve this report will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
Marc Brown

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
28 February 2012
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable iaw and regutations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have to prepare the
group financial statements in accordance with intemational Financial Reportng Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs) and have
elacted to prepare the Company accounts In accordance with United Kingdorn Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Urited Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable taws) Under Company law the Directers must not approve the financial staternents uniess they are
sabisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company and Group for that penod In prepanng these
financial statements the Directors are required to

» select suitable accountng policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o ary matenal departures disclosed and explained in the finarncial

statements and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is napproprate to presume that the Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the finanoal statements
comply with the Comparnies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and ather irregulanties

In so far as each of the Directors 1s aware

+ there Is no relevant audit Informatton of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and
« the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the auditors are aware of that information

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial Information included on the Company's website
Lagistabon in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from tegislation In other
jursdictions

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are listed on pages 34 and 35 confirms that to the best of their knowledge
« the financial statements, prepared In accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
labiities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings iIncluded in the consolidation taken as a whole and

« the management report mcludes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole together with a descnption of the principal nsks and uncertanbes that they face
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Perform Group plc

We have audited the group finanaal statements of Perforrm Group pic for the yaar ended 31 Decernber 201 which compiise the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of cormprebensive Income, conschdated statement of changes in equity consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained moere fully In the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the group financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur responsitaity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the group financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and Internatonal Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Prachices Board's {(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financlal statements
In our opinion the group financial statements

* give a true and farr view of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 Decermber 201 and of its profit for the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirerments of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS regulation

Opinlon on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006
In our opinon

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
group financial staterments and

+ the iInforration given in the Corporate Governance Staternent set out on pages 43 to 47 with respect to internal control and nsk management
systems In relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in our opinton

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we raquire for our audit, or
« a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the Directors’ statement, set out on page 42 relation to going concern

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's comphance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review, and

» certain elermnents of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of Perform Group plc for the year ended 3t December 2011
and on the information in the Rermuneration Committee Report that 1s described as having been audited

Mark Henshaw

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Tharnton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants

London
28 February 2012
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December 2011

20m 2010
Notes £'000 £'CO0
Al results relate to continuing operations
Revenue 12 103,194 67,430
Cost of sales 3 (53,100) (31994}
Gross profit 2 50,094 35,438
Administrative expenses 34 (46,343) (28 519)
Share of results of joint ventures - 516
Group operating profit 34 375 7,433
Analysed as
Adjusted EBITDA*
(excluding joint ventures, exceptional items and share-based payments) 18,474 10,345
Share of resuits of joint ventures - 516
Adjusted EBITDA* (excluding exceptional items and share-based payments) 18,474 10,861
Exceptional items 6 (4,998) 724
Exceptional share-based payments (GSOP) 26 4,770¢) -
QOther share-based payments 26 (352) {m
EBITDA* 8,354 10,026
Amortisation and depreciation 4,14 15 (3,748) (2227
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 4,13 {855) (366)
Group operating profit 3,751 7,433
Loss on disposal of joint ventures 7 - &)
Investrment Income 8 834 47
Finance costs 9 {1,099} 122)
Group profit before tax 3,486 7,353
Taxation 10 23 2,085
Group profit for the year 3,77 9,448
Profit attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 3,129 9051
Non-controlling interests 588 297
3 N7 9,448
Baslc earnings per share
Basic (pence) 1 14 46
Adjusted (pence) n 63 45
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted (pence) N 14 46
Adjusted (pence) n 63 45

EBITDA 15 cefined as earnings bafore Interest tax depreclation and amortisation Adjusted EBITDA (excluding excaptional tems and share based payments) is defined as earnuings before
intergst tax, depreciation and amortisation exciuding amounts in respect of the Group s share-based payments and exceptional tems Adpusted EBITDA (excluding joint ventures exceptional
items and share-based payments) 1s Adjusted EBITDA exduding the Group s share of results of its Jont Ventwres EBITDA and both measures of Adjusted EBITDA are considerad by the

Directors to be key measures of inanaial performance

Adusted basic and diuted eamings per share are based on profit attnbutabte ta equity holders of the parent plus excaptional items, share-based payments and amontsation of acquisition
intangibles drded by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares cutstanding in the period between when the Group listed on the Londen Stock Exchange and 31 December 201
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2011

20mM 2010
£000 £'000
Profit for the year 37 9,448
Other comprehensive INCome
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 23 130
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,740 9578
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 3,162 9151
Non-controiling interests 588 427
3,740 9578
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2011

Total
Issued Capital Profit Forelgn attributable Non-
share Share redemption andloss  exchange toownersof controlling Total

capital premium reserve account reserve  the parent Interests equlty

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2010 43242 - - 9743 56 53041 770 53,81
Profit for the year - - - 39051 - 905] 397 9448
Exchange differences on
transkating foraign operations - - - - 100 100 30 120
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 9051 100 9151 427 9,578
Credit to equity for share-based
payments - - - m - m - m
Non-controling Interests acquired - - - (81 - Qa8n (24) (205)
At 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011 43,242 - - 18,724 156 62,122 1,173 63,295
Profit for the year - - - 3129 - 3129 588 377
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations - - - - 23 23 - 23
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 3129 23 2152 588 3740
Credit to equity for share-based
payments - - - 351 - 35 - 351
Re-classification and 15sue
of share capital/prernium
(net of fees) 1360 68,323 - - 69,683 - 69683
Cancellation of deferred shares (38 342) - 38 342 - - - - -
Non-contrelling Interests acquired - - - (2604) - {2604) (1,611) 4,215)
At 31 December 201 6,260 688,323 38,342 19,600 179 132,704 150 132,854
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of financial position
Year ended 31 December 2011

201 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 12,28 57,192 38642
Acouisiion intangibles 13,28 11,862 396
Other intangible assets 14 5,453 2273
Property, plant and equipment 15 6,327 4562
Deferred tax asset 23 5,515 7835
86,349 53,708
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables 18 24,269 13,839
Cash and cash equivalents 19 75,863 16,937
100,132 30,776
Total assets 186,481 84,484
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (36,929) (20,885)
Current borrowings 21 (5,534) -
Current tax habiives 10 (498) 0

(42,961) {20,975)
Non currant liabilities

Non current borrowings 21 (6,926) -
Non current contingent consideration 28 (3,547) -
Non current finance lease obligations 29 193) [@4:)]
Total liabilitles (53,627) (21,189)
Net assets 132,854 63,295
Equity

Called-up share capital 25 6,260 43242
Share premium 25 68,323 -
Capital redemption raserve 25 38,342 -
Retained earnings 19,600 18,724
Foreign exchange reserve 179 156
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 132,704 682,122
Nor-controling interest 27 150 1173
Total equity 132,854 63,295

The financial statements of Perform Group plc, registered number 6224278 were aperoved by the Board of Drectors and suthonsed for issue on
28 February 2012

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

e QQVLF

O Slipper
Director
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2011

20Mm 2010
£'000 £'000

Operating activities
Group operating profit 3,751 7433
Share of result of joint ventures - (516)
Depreciation and armortisation 4,603 2593
Emptoyee share-based costs 5,122 m
Net changes in working capital 1,678 2974
Cash flow from operating activities 15,154 12,595
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,699) (3798)
Purchase of Intangible assets {4,094) {1,969)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (20,553) (388)
Acquisition of nen-controlling interests (4,480) (314
Exceptional and other iterns directly attnbutable to acquisitions 1,770
Investment income 513 47
Cash flow used In Investing activities (34,083) (6,422)
Financing activities
Proceeds from sale and finance lease backs 487 08
Finance lease capital repayments (449) 450
Borrowings (net of bank fees and costs) 16,590 -
IPO proceeds (et of bank fees and costs) 65,683 -
Exceptional items directly attnbutable to Listing {3,228) -
Berrowings capital repayment (4,248) -
Interest and finance lease charges paid (980) 122y
Cash flow from financing activities 77,855 335
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the perod
(all continuing operations) 58,926 6,508
Cash and cash eguivalents at start of penod 16,937 10429
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 75,863 16,937
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2011

1. Accounting policles

Perform Group plc 15 a public mited labiity company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2008 The address of the
registered office 1s Sussex House, Plane Tree Crescent Feltham, Middlesex TW13 7HE The nature of the Group's operations and Its principal
activities are set in the Directors’ Report

Itemns included in the financial staternents of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the functional currency) The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling which 15 the
parent's functional and presentational currency

Basls of preparation
The Group's consoldated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors In accordance with applicable International
Finanoial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (LASB)

The Financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis Histoncal cost s generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given In exchange for the assets The principat accounting policies adopted are set out below

The Group had cash balances of £75 9m at the year end (of which £75 4m was unrestncted) and £13 Om of dabt relating to borrowings

of £12 5m (of which £5 5m 1s due In less than one year) and finance teases of £0 5m (of which £0 3m 1s due In less than one year) Having

reviewed cashflow forecasts and budgets for the year ahead the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has sufficient -
resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis

I preparing the accounts

Adoption of new and revised standards

At the date of authornisation of these financial statements certain new standards amendments and interpretabions to existing standards have
been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group Management anticipates that all of

the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group s accounting policies for the first penod beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement Information on new standards amendments and Interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group s financial
statements 1s provided below Certain other new standards and interpretations have been 1ssued but are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group's financial statements

IFRS 8 Financial instruments (IFRS 9) - The IASE aims to replace 1A% 39 Financial Instruments Recegnition and Measurement in its entirety
IFRS 9 15 being 1ssued in phases To date, the chapters deahing with recogribion, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities have been issued These chapters are effective for annual peniods beginning 1 January 2013 Further chapters dealing with
impairment methodology and hedge accounting are stll being developed The Group s management have yet to assess the impact of this new
standard on the Group s consolidated financlal statements However they do not expect to implernent IFRS 9 until 2!l of its chapters have been
published and they can comprehensively assess the impact of all changes

Consolidation Standards - A package of consolidation standards are effective for annual peniods beginning or after 1 January 2013 Information
on these new standards is presented below The Group s management have yet to assess the impact of these new and revised standards on the
Group's consciidated financial statements

IFRS 10 Consohidated Financial Statements (IFRS 10) - IFRS 10 supersedes IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Staternents (1AS 27) and
SIC 12 Consolidation - $pecial Purpose Entities It revised the defimbion of control together with accompanying guidance to identify an interest
N a subsidiary However the requirements and mechames of consoldation and the accounting for ary non-controling interests and changes

in control remain the same

IFRS 1t Jomt Arrangements (IFRS 11} - IFRS i supersedes 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (IAS 31) It aligns more closely the accounting by
the mvestors with their nghts and obligations relating to the joint arrangement 1n addiben, 1AS 315 option of using proportionate consolidation
for joint ventures has been elimemated IFRS 11 now reguires the use of the equity accounting method, which 1s currently used for investments
N assoclates

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities (IFRS 12) - IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for vanous

types of investments including unconsclidated structured entities |t introduces new disclosure requirements about the nsks to which an entity
15 exposed from its involvemnent with structured entibes
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Consequential amendments to IAS 27 and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Jomnt Ventures (IAS 28) - |AS 27 now only deals with
separate financial statements 1AS 28 bnngs investments N joint ventures into 1ts scope However tAS 285 equity accounting methodology
remains unchanged

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (IFRS 13) - IFRS 13 does not affect which tems are required to be fair-valued, but clanfies the definition of fair
value and provides related guidance and enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements Itis applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 The Group s management have yet to assess the impact of this new standard

Amendments to IAS T Presentation of Financial Statements (IAS 1 Armendments) - The IAS 1 Amendments require an entity to group Items
presented In cther comprehensive iIncome Inte those that in accordance with other IFRSs (@) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) will be reclassified subsequentty to profit or loss when specific conditions are met It is applicable for annual perrods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012 The Group's management expects this will change the current presentation of iterms in other comprehensive Income
however 1t will not affect the measurement or recognition of such items

Basls of consclidation

The Group financial staternents incorporate the financial staternents of the Company and entities controlled by the Company Controt is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities
and 1s achieved through direct or inclirect ownership of voting rights currently exercisable or convertible potential voting nghts by way of
contractual arrangement

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the perned are Included in the consolidated iIncome statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposa), as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial staterments of subsidianes to bring the accounting policies used into ine with those
used by the Group Allintra-Group transactions, balances, Income and expenditure are eliminated on consclidation

Non-controling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein Theinterests of non-controling shareholders may
be inhally measured at far value or at the non-controlling interests’ propartionate share of the fair value of the acgquiree's identifiable net assets
The choice of measurement 15 made on an acquisition by acquistion basts Subsequent to acqusiion, the carrying armount of nen-controling
interests is the amount of those iInterests at ntial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes N eguity

Total comprehensive Income 1s attributed to non-controlling interests even If this results In the non-controlling interests having & deficit balance

Changes I1n the Group's Interest in subsichanes that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions The carrymg
amount of the Group's Interasts and the non-controling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in therr relative interests in the subsidiares
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controling interests are adjusted and the farr value of the consideration paid or received
15 recognised directly n equity and attributed to the owners of the Company

Business combinations

On acquisition, the assets habilites and contingent labilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition Any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired s recogrised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisiton
below the farr values of the iIdentfiable net asset acquired 1s credited to the Income statement in the penod of acquisiton

Changes in the Group's ownership interest that do not resu!t in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions Purchase of non-
controling-interests are recognised directly within equity being the difference between the fair value of the consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets to the subsidiary

Contingent and deferred consideration ansing as a result of acquisitions 1s stated at fair value Contingent and deferred consideration is based
on management's best estimate of the likely outcome and best estimate of fair value, which 15 usualty but not always a contracted formula
based on a multiple of revenues and/or EBITDA

The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 - Business Combinabions retrospectively to business combinations prior to the date of transiion
of 1 January 2008

Parform Group e Anneal Report and Accounts 201 59

MIIAHIAD I

|

1

=l

MITATY TYIINYNID ONY SSANISOE °

FINYNEIAOD ‘ ‘

2
F
>
Zz
o
»
-~
5
A
m
2
m
3



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

1. Accounting policles continued

Investment in Joint Ventures

A Joint Venture 1s an entity in which the Group holds an interest on a long term basis and which 1s jointly controlied by the Group and one
or more venturers under a contractual arrangement For both joint venture entities in which the Group held an interest durnng the previous
reporting penod the Group was obliged to make payments on behalf of the joint venture

The resuits and assets and labilities of joint ventures are incorporated into these Group financoial statements using the equity method of
accounting lnvestments injoint ventures were carried in the balance sheet at cost as adusted by post-acguisiion changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the entity less any impairment in the value of the indwidual investments

The Group disposed of its interest In its two joint ventures - Holy Moly Entertainment Ltd and MFC co uk Ltd during the year to
31 December 2010

Losses of both the joint ventures in excess of the Group were only recognised to the extent that the Group incurred legal or constructive
obhgations relating to those losses Accordingly, losses of the Joint Venture Holy Moly Entertainment Ltd in excess of the Group's iInterest in that
entity were not recogrised but losses of the joint venture MFC co uk Ltd in excess of the Group's interest in that entity were recognised

Goodwilll

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acguisition over the Group's share of the fair value of the rdentifiable
assets and labilities acauired Goodwill 1s initially recognised as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less ary accumulated
imparment losses

Goodwill anising on acquisiticns before 1 January 2008, which was being amortised over its estimated useful life of 10 years has been retained
at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested for mparrmeant annualty

Revenue recognition
Revenue represents amounts derived from the provision of services falling wathin the Group's continuing ordinary activibies, after the deduction
of value added tax Revenue i1s measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable

Content distrnbution

Revenue related to the delivery of Watch&Bet 1s recognised in line with the contract with the excephion of any materal actual or anticipated
under delivery of evants which aither (2) contractually cannot be recovered or (b) which the Directors do not consider can be recovered
This 1s derecogrised at the earlier of the point it 1s no longer contractually possible to deliver the events and the date at which the Directors
do not consider the under delivery can be recovered

Revenue related to sales of OMNISPORT, Watchandtrade and GSM products are recognised evenly across a contractual icence peniod
Subscrption

Sales of online subscnption products, mobile downloads, online pay-per-view transactions and sms alerts are recogrised across the penod

n which service 1s provided The clients’ shares of such revenues are shown within cost of sales

Technology and production

Service fees generated from the ongoing provision of website servicing maintenance and hosting to customers are recogrised 1n line with the

service delivery to the customer, which 1s usually evenly across a contractual penod

Fees ansing from the building of products for customers or for structural enhancements to existing customer products are recognised in ine
with contractual milestones durng the contractual buld penod
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Advertising and sponsorship
Revenue related to sponsorship activity is recogrised in kne with the services physically delivered compared to the services specified within
a contract agreed with a sponsor

Revenue related to static/display and video advertising 1s recognised based on the number of advertising impressions physically delivered
compared to the required number of advertising impressions included within a contract agreed with either a brand or an advertising agency

Where the Group represents a third-party webate the clignts’ shares of such revenues are shown within cost of sales

Segmental reporting
In accordance with IFRS 8 operating seaments are reporting In a manner that 1s consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board
of Directors the chief operating deaision maker

Intangible assets - computer software development
Where in the opinion of the Directors, the Group s expenditure in relation to development of software results in future economic benefits,
these costs (including directly attnbutable overheads) are capitalised and amortised over the useful economic life of the asset

Development costs are capitalised only when it 1s probable that future economic benefit will result from the project and the following
critena are met

» the technical feasibility of the product has been ascertaned

» adequate technical financial and other resources are avalable to complete and sell or use the intangible asset,

» the Group can dermonstrate how the iIntangible asset wilt generate future economic benefits and the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset ¢an be dermonstrated,

« it Is the intention of management to complete the intangtble asset and use 1t or sell it and

« the development costs can be measured reliably

Where these cntena are not met developrment costs are charged to the income staterment as incurred

Amortisation s previded on computer software development at a rate calcutated to write each asset down to its estimated residual value
using the straight line method, over its useful Iife usually three years

Methods of amortisation, residual values and useful ives are reviewed and adjusted if appropnate, at each reporting date

Intangible assets - other
Identifiable Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations, that meet the condittons for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisiion date and amortised over therr useful economic life as follows.

« Database content - three years

+ URLs - indefinite life

+ Customer retationships - three years
+ Website architecture - three years

Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and eguipment
at rates calculated to wnte each asset down to its residual value using straight ine method owver Its expected useful life as follows

» Internet hosting platform - three years
+ Office furniture and equipment - three years

» Leasehold improvements - three years
» Motor vehicles - three years
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

1. Accounting policles continued

Impairment of tanglble and intangible assets

At each reporiing date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its goodwill tangible and intangible assets, joint ventures and intangible
assets not yet avaliable for use to determine whether there 1s any Indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss 1f any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (f any) Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit/preduct to which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefirute useful Iife ts tested for impaiment annually and whenever there

15 an Indication that the asset may be impared

Recoverable amount 1$ the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows, which are based on budgeted figures, are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverabla amount, so that the iIncrease carrying arnount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deterrmnad had
no imparrment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) In prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as
mcome iImmediately

Financial instruments
Financiat assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Trade receivables and other recelvable financial assots
Trade recevables do not carry any interest and are stated at therr farr value on initial recognition (plus transaction costs if any) and carried
at amortised cost under the effective interest method

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term deposits held by the Group It also includes cash held on deposit with the Group's
credit card service provider, Streamline

Financlal liabilty and equity
Financial hability and eguity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered nto
Equity instruments issued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Borrowings
Loans and recervables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determunable payments that are not quoted in an active market
After irvtal recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for Impairment

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at therr fair value on inibal recognition (plus transaction costs if any) and carried at
amaortised cost under the effective interest method The farr value of tradle and other payables has not been disclosed as due to therr short
duration management considers the carrying values recognised In the balance sheet to be a reasonable approximation of therr fair value

Foreign currency transiation
Foreign currency transactions of individual companies are translated at the rates ruling when they occurred Foreign currency monetary assets
and habilities are translated at the closing spot rate Exchange differences which anse from translation are recognised in the Income Staternent

The resuits of overseas operations are transtated at the average rates of exchange dunng the year and ther balance sheets translated into
sterfing at the rates of exchange ruling on the reporting date Exchange differences which anse from translation of the cpening net assets
and results of foreign subsidiary undertakings and from transiating the income statement at an average rate are recognised as Other
Comprehensive Income
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Leasing

Rentals payable under cperating leases are charged to the Income staterment over the term of the relevant lease and In accordance
with the terms of the relevant leases Operating lease costs relating to accommaodation are recognised in the incorme staternent under
‘Administrative expenses’

Rentals payable under finance leases which includes lease costs refating to technical equiprnent are treated differently The net present value
of the total lease rental payments are included within property plant and equipment and deprecated over the useful economic life of the
asset The difference between the actual rentals payable and their net present value is treated as a finance cost which is recognised in kine
with the penod of the lease and recognised on the iIncome statement within 'Finance costs’ A liability In relation to finance leases 15 recognised
within Liabihities

Operating profit
Operating profit s stated after share of the post-tax results of joint ventures but before investment income and finance costs

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the penod Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Incorme statement
because 1t excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductibte in other years and further excudes items that are never taxable
or deductible The Group's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilibes in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used n the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised

Such assets and liabikties are not recognised If the temporary difference anises from goodwill or the initial recognition {other than In a bustness
combination) of other assets and liabilities 1n a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recogrised for temporary difference arising on investments in subsidianies except where the Group 15 able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avaiable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 1s settled or the asset 15 realised Deferred
tax 1s charged or credited In the Income statement except when it relates to terns charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive
Income I which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity or other comprehensive Income

Share-based payments

Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the far values of employees’ services are determined indirectly by referance
to the farr value of the instrument granted to the employee This fair vatue 1s appraised at the grant date and for cash settled instruments

1s re-apprassed at each balance sheet date

All equity settled share-based payments are ultimataly recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding credit
to reserves All cash settled share-based payments have a corresponding labifity

If vesting penods apply, the expense 15 allocated over the vesting pencd Estimates are revised subsequently if there 1s any indicattons that
the number of awards expected to vest differs from previous estimates
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

1. Accounting policles continued

Pension

The Group makes contribubons on behalf of employees to an independent, defined contribution pension scheme The Perform Group Personal
Pension Plan 15 operated by Aegon Scottish Equitable The Group has no legal obligation to pay further contrbutions after the payment of its
fixed contnbution, providing that fixed contribution 1s matched by an employee These contributions are recognized as an expense in the penod
the relevant employee services are recerved

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

n the apphcation of the Group's accounting policies which are described in this Statement of Group Accounting Policies, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounits of assets and liabilities that are not readity apparent from
other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and other factors that are considered relavant
Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the period
in which the estimate I1s revised If the revision affects only that pericd, or in the penod of the revision and future penods if the revision affects
both current and future periods

Critical Judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The items befow are critical jJudgements that the Directors believe have a sigrificant effect on the amounts recognised in these
financial statements

Internally generated software and research

Management monitors progress of internal software development projects by using a project management system Significant jJudgement
15 required in distinguishing whether such development should be wntten off or capitalsed Development costs are recognised as an asset
when all the ¢ntera are met costs are not capitalised and are wntten off where this is not the case

The Group's management also monitors whether the recognition requirements for development costs continue to be met This Is necessary
as the economic success of any product developrnent is uncertan and may be subject to future technical problems or developments after
the time of recognition

Trealrment of subsidhary undertakings and related deferred consideration

The Group has one subsdiary (Sportal) which was not wholly owned at the year-end and two further subsidiaries (Global Sports Media

and WatchandTrade) which were not wholly owned for the full year These have all been consolidated and included as subsiciary undertakings
in the Group's financial statements The Directors have reviewed the accounting treatment of each subsidiary to confirm that they should not
be accounted for as joint ventures In each case these reviews concluded that the Group had effective control either through its actual influence
on the strategic and operational policies of the companies and/or through its contractual nghts to acquire 100 per cent control of voting equity

Contingent consiceration

Conbingent consideration ansing as a result of acquisibons is stated at farr value Contingent and deferred consideration 1s based

on management’s best estimate of the likely outcome and best estimate of farr value, which is usually but not always a contracted formula
based on a muluple of revenues and/or EBITDA

Subscnption and advertising sales revenue recogrution

The Group provides online and mobile subscnption based preducts to its custorners usually via customer branded websites to end users
The Group sets the price of these products, collects revenues and delivers the products mcluding after service customer care The Directors
reviewed the products and the nature of how they were supplied and conduded that the revenue generated from these products should
be shown as that of the Group being a pnncipal to these transactions with customer revenue share payments included in cost of sales

The Group acts as advertising sales agent for online advertising inventory of a network of internet sites The Group has built this network and
seeks adverbising campaigns from brands and media agencies to deliver via this network The Group employs its sales staff at s own nsk
effectively negobiates prices and delivers (traffics) the adversing campaigns The Directors have reviewed these arrangements and concluded
that the revenue generated from these products should be shown as that of the Group being a principal to these transactions with customer
Internet sites revenue share payments iIncluded in cost of sales rather than as an agent
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estmates and assumptions, which have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities
withim the next financial year, are discussed helow

Imparrmment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite ives are iImpaired requires an estrmation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units/products/entiges to which goodwilt or those intangible assets have been allocated The value In use calculation requires
the enbity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash generating units/products and a suitable discount rate in order

to calculate present value
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

2. Revenue
201 2010
£000 £'000
Rendering of services and revenue as disctosed in the
consolidated income staterment 103,194 67430
[nvestment iIncome 834 47
Total revenue as defined in 1AS 18 104,028 67477

3. Segment Information
The Group focuses Its iInternal management reporting on the following segments

Content cistribution - The Group's content distnbution revenue is generated from the sales of the Watch&Bet and WatchandTrade services
suite of OMNISPORT products and GSM data products

Subscaption - The Group’s subscription revenue is generated by subscribers paying for web TV mobile content Sportal Scoreboard and
LIVESPORTTYV products

Advertising and sponsorship @oniine video) - The Group's @Player generates pre-roli video advertising and sponsorship revenues

Advertising and sponsorship (onine disolay) - The Group generates its online display revenues through sales of display inventory on Goal com,
Spox com, Soccerway com and Sportal com au and on a network of third-party premium sports websites

Technology and production - The Group generates technology and production revenues from the design, bulld and management of website
and maobile services and the production of Iive and VOD content

The Group focuses its management reporting on these segments as the segments’ potentral to generate revenue 15 the chief dnver of the
Group's business and the allocation of resources The Group's cost base cannot reascnably be allocated to anindividual operating segment (and
nor Is It for the purpase of the CODM making operating decisions and allecating resources)

The Group has elected to disclose additional costs over and above the requirements of [FRS 8
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g
Operating segment information for the year ended 31 December 201 and 201015 as follows
20N 2010
£000 £'000
Revenue
Content distribution 64,943 41089
Subscnption 9,535 8027 b
Technelogy and producton 14,953 nes8l .
Advertising and sponsorship (video) 6,792 2,971 E
Advertising and sponsorship display) 6,97 3662 ﬁ
103,194 67,430 »
Cost of sales ]
Content (35,831 (21340) g
Publisher shares {2,715) (2,500
Technical and software fees (6,221 (4842) E
Production (6,947 (2,205) 5
Other (1,386) (1107 g
Total cost of sales (53,100) (31,994)
Gross profit 20,094 35,436
Staff costs (24,415) (19,413)
Other administrative costs (7,205) (5678
Adjusted EBITDA (excluding Joint ventures, exceptional [tems
and share-hased payments) 18,474 10,345 I
Share of results of joint ventures - 516 o
Adjusted EBITDA (excluding exceptional Items 8
and share-based payments) 18,474 10,861 ﬁ
Exceptional items (4,998) (724 £
Exceptional share-based payments (4,770) . i
Share-based payments (352) (m
EBITDA 8,354 10026
Amortisation and depreciation (3,748) (2227)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (B55) (366)
Group operating profit 3,751 7,433
Loss on disposal of joint ventures - &)
Investment income 834 47
Finance costs (1,099 122y
Group profit before tax 3,486 7,353
Total assets 186,481 84,484
Total liabilities 53,627 21189
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

3. Segment information continued
The Group I1s required to present geographical informatton relating (o its revenues Revenues are attnibuted to terntories In the following ways.

+ Content distnbution and Subscription revenues are recognised In the terntory where the end viewer 13 located,
» Technelegy and producton revenues are recognised in the terntory where the contraching party 15 located and
« Advertising and sponsorship revenues are recognised in the terntory where the publisher 1s located

Geographical revenue information for the years ended 31 Decamber 2011 and 2010 ts presented below

Middie East

United Asia and North Rest of
Kingdom Europe Pacific  Americas Africa world Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

20M
Content distrbution 9,824 37135 ns7oc 1426 4568 123 64,946
Subscrption 6202 139 51 1,551 122 9 9534
Technology and production 9505 1395 1623 132 2378 - 15,033
Advertising and sponsorship 5,748 2647 1,225 3764 13 166 13,681
Total revenue 31,279 42,316 15,229 6,873 7,199 298 103,194
Middle East

Uruted Asa and North Rest of
Kingdom Europe Pacific Amercas Africa world Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'00C

2010

Content distnbuton 6804 22192 9,076 1084 1880 43 41,089
Subscription 5083 732 1138 997 67 9 8027
Technology and production 8108 786 1,338 120 1319 - 1,681
Advertising and sponsorship 4708 1,020 862 193 50 - 6,633
Total revenue 24703 24730 12,215 2,414 3316 52 67,430

The total of non-current assets other than goodwill and deferred tax assets (there are no post-employment benefit assets or nghts arising under
Insurance contracts) located in the UK 1s £11,140 000 (2010 £7121,000) Assets held outside the UK are £640,000 (2010 £N0,000)

Revenues of £18,516 000 (2010 Fi0 31BO00), £6,353 000 (2010 £30950Q00) and £6 277000 (2010 £6,061000) were derved from three external

customers These revenues are attnbutable to the Contant distnbution Subscnption Technology and production and Advertising and sponsorship
segments and are from the only customers which Individually in either 2011 or 2010 represented over 5 per cent of the Group's revenues
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4. Operating profit
Operating profit has been arnved at after charging
20M 2010
£'000 £:000
Rentals payable under operating leases 961 1046
Impairment loss recognised on trade recelvables 289 210
Net foreign exchange losses 335 242
Share-based payments (GSOP) 4,770 -
Other share-based payments 352 m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,634 1757
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 1,14 836
Amortisation and acquisiion intangibles ass 366

tn aceordance with Statutory Instrument 2005 No 2417, fees payable to Grant Tharnton UK LLP and therr associates are shown below

20m 2010
£'000 £000

Fees payable to the Group's auditors for the audit of the Group's
annual accounts 48 15
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for the audit of the Group's
subsidianies pursuant to legislation 50 49
Total audit fees 98 64
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for other services
Interim review 8 -
Tax services 268 B6S
1PO and acquisition services (classified within exceptional items) 688 70
Other services 20 92
Total fees payable to the Group's auditors 1,082 291
8. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was

20M 2010

Nos Nos
Business development and sales 70 58
Account managerment and marketing 55 46
Production 235 140
Technology 165 93
Head office and Group management 65 45
Total 590 382
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

S. Staff costs continued
Employee costs (including Executive Directors) were
201m 2010
£'000 £000
‘Wages and salanes 21,937 17496
Socal secunty costs 1,746 1334
Pension costs 732 583
Total 24 415 19 413

In addition the total exceptional share-based payment chiarge was £4,770,000 (2010 £ni) and other share-based charge was £352 000 (2010
£M,000) See note 26 for further details of the Group's share-based payment schemes

Key management costs (Including Executive Directors) were

0N 2010
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 2,968 2683
Social security costs 288 261
Pension costs T4 100
Total 3,367 2044
In addition the total share-based payment charge relating to key employeeas was £537000 (2010 £111CC0)
Cirectors’ remuneration Is set out on page 48 within the Remuneration Committes Report
6. Exceptlonal costs
20m 2010
£'000 £'000
Costs in relation to the Group's Listing on the London Stock Exchange 3,228 569
Costs tn relation to the Group's acquisition of subsichianes 1,770 155
4,998 724

During the year the Group listed on the London Stock Exchange (see note 25) The transachion incurred professionat fegs which given their
size and nature have been separately classified as exceptional items by the Directors In addiion duning the year the Group acquired Goal com
(Holdeo) S A Spox Media GmbH and medasports Digital GrmbH as well as acquinng the non-controlling interests of Global Sports Media BV
and WatchandTrade Limited The associated costs have been classified as exceptional tems by the Directors
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7. Loss on disposal of jolnt ventures

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20Mm 2010
£000 £000
Loss on disposal of joint ventures - 5
8. Investment Income
201 2010
£000 £000
Interest recevable 834 47
Investment income primardy relates to bank interest receivable on funds raised dunng the Group's IPO
9. Finance costs
20m 2010
£'000 £000
Interest payable 849 a2
Finance lease cost 59 40
Other bank charges and finance ¢osts 191 -
1,099 122

Interest payable primarily relates to bank interest on the Group's borrowings

Perform Group pk. Annual Report and Accounts 200

MIAHINO {
!

MIIATH TYIDONVIS ONY SSANISNE i I—

aamaanoe’ f
‘
‘

n
z
»
4
a
>
=
“u
5
m
=
m
]




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

10. Taxation

2om 2010

£'000 £'000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax at 26 5% (2010 28%) 303 20
Foreign tax
Overseas tax 194 159
Deferred tax
Current year onginating tempaorary differences (813) (2394}
Adjustrnent in respect of prior years 85 50
Tax credit for the year (231) (2095)

UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 26 5 per cent (2010 28 per cent) of the estimated assessable profit for the year taxation for other jJunsdictions
15 calculated at the rates prevailing in those jJunsdictrons The credit for the year ¢an be reconciled 1o the profit per the income statement as
follows

201 2010
£'000 £000
Profit before tax 3,486 7353
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 26 5% (2010 28%) 924 2059
Effects of
Tax losses recognisad/utiised (net) (1,629) “ 310
Difference between capital allowances and depreciation (900) (508)
Expenses not deductible in determining tax profis 1,132 287
Difference in tax rates (98) 415
Share-based payments 77 26
Acquisition intangibles 304 -
Cther timing differences 40 (B4}
(231) (2,095}
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1. Eamnings per share
20M 2010
£'000 £'000
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders (£'000) 3,129 9,051
Exceptional iterns (£'000) 4,998 724 L.
Share-based payments (£'000) 5,122 m .
Arnortsation of acquisition intangibles (£'000) 855 386 g
Adjusted earnings (E'000) 14,104 10,252 ﬁ
>
Welghted average number of shares In Issue (000s) - basic 218,370 187352 &
Dilubive effect of performance share plan (000s) 468 - g
Welghted average number of shares In issue (000s) - diluted 218,838 197 352 E
z
Adjusted welghted average number of shares In Issue - basic 225,376 225376 §
Dilutive effect of performance share plan (000s) 468 - g
Adjusted welghted average number of shares in issue (000s) - diluted 225,844 225376
Basic earnings per share
Statutory {pence) 14 46
Adjusted {pence) 63 45
Diluted eamnings per share I
Statutory (pence) 14 46 3
Adjusted {pence) 63 a5 B
:
Adjusted basic and diluted eamings per share ara based on profit attnbutable to equity hotders of the parent plus exceptional ltems, share-based payments and amortisation of acquisition
ntangebles divided by the adjusted weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding in 2011 1n the panod between when the Group listed on the London Stock Exchange and
I December 201
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

12. Goodwill

£'Q00
Cost and Net Book Value
At 1January 2010, 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 38,642
Additions
Goal corn (Hoidco) S A 12,515
Spox Media GmbH and mediasports Digital GmibbH 6,035
At 31 December 2011 57,192

For the purpose of annual impairment testing goodwill is alliocated to the following cash-generating units which are the units expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business combinations In which the goodwilt anses

20M 2010

£'000 £'000

Subscriptions technology and production 19,283 19283
Content distribution 18,120 18120
Advertising and sponsorship (display) 10,743 1,239
Advertising and sponsership (viceo) 9,046 -
Total 57,192 38,642

As stated in the Statement of Group Accounting Policies the Group performs an annual Impairment review for goodwill, by companing the
carrying amount of these assets with their recoverable amount With the exception of docmain names acquired, no intangible assets are currantly
assumed to have Indefinite lives An impairment test at the date of transition to IFRS was undertaken with no impairment noted

Testing 15 carned out by allocating the carrying value of these assets to groups of cash generating units (CGUs) The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs are determined by value in use calculabions The key assumpticns for the value inuse calculatons are those regarding discount rates and
agrowth rates assumed in the CGUs' business plans

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific
te the CGUs Management estimates growth rates based on experience within the markets i which the CGUs operate

The discount rate applied to the future cash flows of all the CGUs was 10 per cent (2010 10 per cent) Each CGU's forecast 1s based on growth
rates ranging from 10 per cent to 100 per cent, depending on the year with the range reflecting that many of the CGUs products are new to the
market, and Js also based on current year performance assumptions

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts on an extrapolated basis over five years from the CGUSs forecast annual budgets which are approved by
rnanagement These plans have varying rates of growth due to the different factors dmang the indvidual CGUSs revenue and profit growth (see
Directers' Report)

Inits five year forecasts the Group has, iIn some nstances applied growth rates significantly in excess of that of the current economic
ervironment because the Directars' believe that the Group's success in creating value for its customers’ digita! nghts, the length and nature of
Its existing contracts and its internationat customer base will result in the Group's results improving significantly quicker than that of the current
economy

The Group consider it unhkely that changes in a key assurnption could cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount
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Informatlon
technology Customer
Domailn architec- relation-
names ture ships Content Total
£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Cost
At 1 Janury 2010 31 Decermnber 2010 and 1 January 200 1,096 - - - 1056
Additions 9652 710 1697 262 1233
At 31 December 2011 10748 710 1697 262 13,417
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2000 365 - - - 365
Charge for the year 335 - - - 335
At 31 December 2010 and 1 Janury 201 700 - - - 700
Charge for the year 366 152 251 86 855
At 31 December 201 1,066 152 251 86 1,555
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 396 - - - 296
At 31 December 2011 9682 558 1,446 176 n 862
14. Other Iintangible assets
Computer
software
development
£000
Cost
At January 2010 1.201
Additions 2007
Impairment (278)
At 31 Decermnber 2010 and 1 January 201 2,930
Additions 4,294
At 31 December 2011 7224
Accumulated amortisaion
At 1 January 2010 434
Charge for the period 432
fmpalrment (209)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 657
Charge for the penod 1m4a
At 31 December 2010 1771
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 2273
At 31 December 2011 5453

Included within additions to computer software development 1n 20111 £2,137000 (2010 £994,000) of intemally capitalised staif costs
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

15. Property, plant and equipment

Office
Internet furniture Leasehold
hosting and Improves Motor
platform equipment ments vehicles Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At t January 201C 4282 495 243 15 5035
Additions 3088 446 34 - 3,873
Disposals (56) - - - (56)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 201 7312 a4l 584 15 8,852
Addittons 4,025 310 64 - 4399
At 31 December 2011 n337 1251 648 15 13 251
Accumulated amortisation
At t January 2010 2318 209 49 12 2588
Charge for the penod 1,518 120 116 3 1757
Drisposais (55) - - - (55)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 3,781 329 165 5 4,290
Charge for the pericd 1921 458 255 - 2634
At 31 December 2011 5702 787 420 i5 6924
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 353 612 419 - 4,562 "
At 31 December 2011 5,635 464 228 - 6,327

Assets with a present value of the minimum lease payments of £443 000 (2010 £276 000) were acquired or sold and leased back under |
a finance lease arrangement during the year The total accumulated depreciation related to finance lease assets s £898 000 (2010 £382,000)
and accordingly the net book value at the year-end 15 E616,000 (2010 £689,000)
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16. Subsidiaries
The principal subsidiaries of the Company, their country of Incorporation, ownership of their issued ordinary share capital and the nature of ther

trade are lsted below

Proportion of all

classes of issued

Country of share caplital owned
incorporation by the Company Principal activity

meoi

|

Directly owned
Perform Media Services Ltd Great Britain 100% Digital sports meda

Held through intermediate companies
Online adverksing and

Perform Media Sales Ltd Great Bntain 00% SPONSOrsnIpR sales
Perform Media Channels Ltd Great Bntamn 100% Digutal sports med
Watchandtrade Ltd Northern Ireland 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media Asia Pte Ltd Singapore 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media Inc United States 100% Digital sports media
Sportal Australa Pty Lid Austratia 88% Digital sports media
Pangorights L td Great Britain 100% Digital sports media
Sportal New Zealand Pty Ltd New Zealand B88% Digital sports media
Sportal India Private Ltd Incha 88% Digital sports rnedia
Global Sports Media BV Holland 100% Digital sports rmedia
Mangalore Sports Data india Private Lirnited Incia 100% Drgital sports media
Premum TV Australia Pty Ltd* Australia 100% Drgital sports media
Classic Sport Ltd Great Britain 100% Digital sports media
Perfortn Media Services SRL italy i00% Digital sports media
Perform Media Services Germany GmEBH Gerrmany 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media France SARL France 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media Poland Zoo Poland 100% Digital sports media
Perforrm Media Japan KK Japan 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media Norway AS Norway 100% Digital sports media
Goal com (Holdco) SA Luxembourg 100% Helding compeany
Goal com North America Inc United States 100% Digital sports media
Spox Media GmbH Germany 100% Digital sports media

Online advertising and
mediasports Digital GmbH Germany 120% sponsorship sales
Kontertakttk GmbH Germany 100% Digital sports media
Perform Media Spam SL Spamn 100% Digital sports media
Performn Media Sweden AB Sweden 100% Digital sports medta

The proportion of voting rights held 1s the same as the proportion of shares held

* This entity, at the date these financial statements were approved, was In the process of being wound up
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

17. Interests In Joint ventures
The Group uses the equity method of accounting for joint ventures The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's
Investment in jont ventures

£'000
At 1 January 2010 (1030
Share of profit before mterest and taxation 516
Disposal of interests in joint ventures bl4

At 31 December 2010, 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 -

In June 2010 the Group’s interest in MFC couk Ltd (a digitial sports media company incorporated in Great Bntain of which the Group owned 50
per cent of the ardinary and 100 per cent of the deferred shares) was s0ld to its joint venture partner for a nominal sum A service contract for
the Group to deliver the football club's website was also confirmned at the same time

In December 2010 the Group's interest In Holy Moly Entertainment Ltd (a digital entertanment media company Incorporated m Great Britan
of which the Group owed 50 per cent of the Ordinary Shares) was sold to Its joint venture partner for 2 norminal sum

The following balance sheet information related to these two joint ventures as at 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010

At 31 Atl

December January

2010 2010

£'000 £'000

Non-current assets - [21]

Current assets - 199

Total assets - 280
Current liabiibes - (963)
Net abilities - (683)

Total revenue {unti date of disposal) 134 188

Write-back of loans at date of disposals 931 -
Total expenses (until date of disposal) (366) (549)
Total profit/(oss) after tax (Unul date of disposal) 699 (361}
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18. Trade and other recelvables

At 31 At 31

December December

20N 2010

£'000 £000

Gross trade recevables 16,453 8,460
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (693) 238

Trade receivables 15,760 8222

Pre-payments and accrued income 8,508 56177

24,269 13,832

Trade recevables are stated at amortised cost as reduced by appropnate alfowances for estimated nrrecoverable amounts

The due date for trade recernables will vary depending on the junsdiction and product but 1s typically between 30 and 60 days Trade
receivables do not bear any effective interest rate All trade recervables are subject to credit nsk exposure however the Group does not identify
specific concentration of credit nsk with regards to trade receivables, as the amount recognised consists of a large number of recevables from

varous customers

The fair value of these short term financial assets i1s not iIndwdually determined as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation

of fair value

Movements on the Group provision for iImpairment of trade recevables are set out In the table below

20mM 2080

£000 £'000

At 1January 238 773
Prowision for recelvables impairment 327 18]

Provision for bad debts acquired with subsidiaries 128 -
Release of provision for amounts owed by joint ventures - (445)

693 238

The ¢reabion and release of provisions for impaired recenvables has been included In the Income staterment Amounts charged to the provision

account are generally wntten off when there I1s no expectation of recovenng additionat cash

The other classes within trade and cther receivables do not contain impaired assets
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 201

18. Trade and other recelvables continued
Some of the unimparred trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date Financial assets past due but not impaired are shown below

At 31 AL 31
Decembeor December
20M 2010
£'000 £'000
Not more than three months 6,584 4,051
Mare than three months but not more than six months 3,801 669
More than six months but not more than a year 666 530
More than one year - 210
Tetal 1,051 5,460
The average credit period taken 1s 54 days (2010 50 days)
The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their far value
19. Cash and cash equivalents
At 31 At 31
December December
201 2010
£000 £000
Cash 75,356 16,430
Restricted cash 507 507
75,863 16,937

The restricted cash relates to a secunty deposit which s under charge to the Group's credit card payment service provider to support the
acceptance of credit card payments from customers of the Group and its clients Cash was held in a vanety of interest bearng accounts in four
different banks

20. Trade and other payables

At 31 At 31

December December

20M 2010

£'000 £'0C0

Trade payables 16,369 7226
Accruals deferred Income and other creditors 20,103 13343
Amounts owed under finance leases 307 316
Deferred consideration 150 -
36,929 20,885

The average credit penod taken for trade purchases 1s 42 days (2010 33 days)
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approxirnates to therr fair value

Deferred consideration of £150,000 (2010 £nil) is owed to a former shareholder of WatchandTrade Ltd in respect of the acqursibon of the
non controlling interest of that business
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21. Borrowings
At 31 AL 31
December December
201N 2010
£'000 £'000
Current borrowings 5,534 _
Non-current borrowings 6 926 -
12,460 -

The acquisition of Goal com (Holdco) S A was funded, in part, by the full drawdown of 8 £17000 000 term loan facility ("Facility A ) provided by
the Bank of tretand plc which Perform Media Services entered into on 17 February 2011 The Bank of Ireland plc also provided to Perform Group
plc Perform Media Sales Limited and Perform Media Channels Limited (together the "Guarantors™) a further sterling revolving credit facility

In an aggregate amount of £3 000000 (‘Facihity B )

Together Facility A and Faciity B form the “Facilities Agreement” Utiisations under the Faciiies Agreement bear interest for each interest penod
at a rate equal to the aggregate of LIBOR, plus a margin of 3 5 per cent A commitment fee is payable quarterly in arrears and 15 calculated as 50
per cent of the interest payable on the Facility 8 comrmitment less any amounts drawn under Facility B Two thirds of the interest rate is required
to be hedged Facility B was not drawn down at 31 December 2011

The Facilities Agreement requires the Borrower to comply with certain financial covenants

Faciity A 1s being repaid in equal instalments of £1416,667 (the first instaliment was on 30 June 201T) and on each subsequent quarter date
Facility A must ke fully repaid by no later than 31 March 2014 In the event Faciity B 15 drawn down this must be repaid by 31 March 2014

at the latest Certain conditions may require Faciity B to be repaid before 31 March 2014 should the Facility be drawn down

The amounts provided above are net of fees paid to the Bank of Ireland These fees (£410,000) were offset against the loan on inception
and are baing amortised to the Income statement over the length of the loan The carrying value at 31 December 2011 1s £291000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

22. FInancdlal risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financal nsks The main financial nsks faced by the Group relate to foreign exchange rates interest
rate risks the risk of default by counter-parties to financial transactions and the avalabilty of funds to meet business needs These nsks are
managed as described below

The Group's nsk management 15 cocrdinated at its headquarters, In close cooperation with the board of Directors, and focuses an actively
securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minirvising the exposure to financial markets

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes The most significant financial risks to which the
Group I1s exposed are descnbed below

Currency risk

The Group's objective when managing currency nisk is to ensure that changes in exchange rates would not have a matenal impact en the Group
The Group's policy Is to review the level of revenuas and costs denominated in vanous key currencies and to naturally hedge wherever possible
Where this 1s not possible and a currency nsk is forecast the Directors’ strategy 1s to acquire forward options to mitigate the level of risk Forward
contracts were put in place during the year to 31 December 2010 No forward contracts were put in place durnng 207 or were outstanding at the
year-end

The table below shows the extent to which group companies have monetary assets and lliabiities in currencares other than their local currency

Australian Other
Eure US Dollar Dollar currencies Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
201
Financial assets 1125 4673 2217 148 18,163
Financial iabilities (9,055) {5,435) (1,652) (284) (16,426)
Total exposure 2,070 (762) 565 (136) 1,737
2010
Financial assets 7206 878 2,345 97 10,526
Financial habilities {3,783) (360) (1,093) (186) (5422
Total exposure 3423 518 1,252 (89 5104

Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s retranslation of its foreign subsicianes as well as the Group's overseas sales and
purchases, which are primarily denominated in euros and Australian dollars

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity with regard to the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
and the eurg/sterling exchange rate, the Austrahan dollar/sterling rate and the US dollar/stering rate It assumes a +/- 10 per cent movement in the
euro/stering exchange rate for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010 4 per cent) a +/- 10 per cent movement in the Australian dollar/stering
exchange rate (2010 8 per cent) and a +/- 10 per cent movernent i the US dollar/sterling exchange rate (2010 10 per cent)

These percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility 1n exchange rates 10 the previous 12 months
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If sterling had weakened against the euro, Australian dollar and US doltar by 10 per cent (2010 4 per cent}, by 10 per cent (2010 8 per cent) and
10 per cent (2010 10 per cent) respectively then this would have had the following mpact:

20M 2010
Australlan Australian
Euro Dollar US Dollar Euro Dollar US Dollar
£000 £000 £000 £'000 E£'000 £'000 I
Net profit 842 74 137 107 18 a2 -
Equity 612 n 222 2% 103 (19) g
X
If sterling had strengthened against the euro, Australian dollar and US dollar by 10 per cent (2010 4 per cent) by 10 per cent {2010 9 per cent) g
and 10 per cent (2010 10 per cent) respectively then this would have had the following impact. n
201 2010
Australlan Australian
Eurc Dollar US Dollar Euro Dollar US Dollar =
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 2
Net profit (689} (61) {M2) me) [C))] 8 g
Equity (501 (9) (181) (224) (124) 25

Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recevables These balances are actively monitored to avoid
significant concentrations of credit nsk The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk 1s managed by short and long term cash flow forecasts Sufficient cash reserves are held to maintain short term flexibility

TINVYNEIAOD ‘ i

As at 31 December 201, the Group's non-dervative financial latwlines have contractual matunties (ncluding interest payments where applicable)
as summarnised befow

Non-

Current Non- current

within  Current 6to current later than

6 months 12 months  1to 5 years 5 vears

31 December 20N £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payvables 16 269 - - -
Borrowings 2767 2767 6,926 -
Amounts owed under finance leases 168 209 183 -
Deferred consideration 150 - - -
19,454 3,076 719 -
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

22. Financlal isk management continued
This compares to the matunty of the Group’s non-denvative financial habilities In the previous reporting penods as follows

Non-
Current Non- current
within  Current6to current later than
6 months 12 months  1to 5 years S years
31 Decernber 2010 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 6976 108 141 -
Amounts owed under finance leases 168 148 214 -
7144 256 3E85 -

Caplital nsk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going cencern and to provide an adequate
return to shareholders The Group has no policy as to the level of equity capital and other reserves other than to address statutory requirements

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at flcating rate interest rates The Group ts required to hedge at least two-thirds
of the lcan via an interest rate swap hedging floating rate interest for fixed rate interest The interest rate swap settles on a quarterly basis

A floating rate of LIBOR (plus 3 S per cent premium) is swapped to a fixed rate of 194 per cent (plus 3 5 per cent margin) The Directors do not
consider that this denvative had a matenal value at 31 Decemiber 2011

The Group's hedging activities are evaluated regularty to align them with interest rate views and defined nisk appetite, ensunng the most
approprate hedging strategies are applied

If Interest rates had been three per cent higher/lower and all other values were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 December 201 would increase/decrease by £0 4m due to the Group's exposure to floabing interest rates

23, Deferred tax
20m 2010
£'000 £000
Deferred tax asset movement
At 1January 7,835 5399
Acquisition of subsiciaras {3,125) -
Credhit to Income staternent 728 2344
Other 77 92
At 31 December 5,515 7,835
At 51 At 31
December December
Analysis of deferred tax asset 20m 2010
Capital allowances In excess of depreciation 914 10
Share-based payments 123 -
Losses 6,187 7918
Acquisition intangibles (2,817 {93)
Total 5,515 7835

In addition to the amounts set out above (which represents the Group's forecast utiisation of tax losses within the next two years) the Group
has an unrecognised deferred tax asset at 31 December 2011 of £1 3 (2010 £3 3m) Of thus Erf (2010 £14m) relates to losses and £13m 2010
£19m) relates to capital allowances
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At 31 At 3l
December December
20N 2010
£'000 £'000
Amounts due under finance leases 193 214
25. Share capital

At 31 AL
December December
201 2010
£'000 £'000

Issued
Preference Shares of £1 each - 389
A Ordinary Shares of £1each - 4,324
B Ordinary Shares of £1 each (£0 01 paid) - 6
Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each 6,260 -
6,260 43 242
At 3 AL 31
December Decemiser
20m 2010
nos nos

Issued
Preference Shares of £1each - 38912
A Ordinary Shares of £1each - 4323
B Ordinary Shares of £1 each (£0 O1 paid) - 571
Qrdinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each 225,376 -
225,376 43,807

On 18 March 201 the Company re-registered from a pnvate imited company to a public imited company

Foliowing a resclution of the Company passed on 7 Apnlt 201 which took effect immediately pror to the Listing of the Company s secunties

on the main market of the London Stock Exchange

= each of the Company’s A Ordinary Shares were subdivided, reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary Shares
* gach of the Company’'s B Ordinary Shares were subdivided reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary Shares

« each holding of the existing Preference Shares were consolidated into one preference share,

+ these Preference Shares were subdivided reclassified and redesignated into in aggregate 21132 432 new Ordinary Shares and 1,380,354 048

deferred shares of 2 7/9ths pence each 1n the capital of the Company and
- the Company allotted a further 28 Om Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each

Following the share re-organisation and Listing the Company's share capital compnsed 225,376 072 new Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence

The Company recerved proceeds net of bank fees and costs of £637m

On 21 June the Company cancelled, at no cost, all of the deferred shares created on Listing The deferred shares did not entitle the holders to any
dividends or distribution and were only able to be transferred by the Company A capital redemption reserve of £38 3m was created as a result.

Perforrn Group pit Annual Repor oncd Accounts 201
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

26. Share-based payments
A total charge of £5,122 000 (2010 £111000) relating to the Group's share-based payment schemes has been included in the Income Statement,

Growth Securities Ownership Plan {GSOP)

In March 2010, the Board resolved to put in place a Growth Secunties Ownership Plan (the "GSOP") Under the GSOP, certain key
non-shareholding employees were given the opportunity to purchase a financial instrument which tracks the Company's enterprise value
(defined as market capitalisation for these purposes) over a set periad, baing the period ending 12 months after the occurrence of an exit event

As at 31 December 2010 and 201 21 senior employees (none of whom 1s a Director or a current shareholder 1n the Company) held a totat of

35 units under the plan The terms of the GSOP provide for cash payments, on a pro-rata basis, by the Company to participants (subject to
such participant’s continued employment at the Group at the date payable) iIf the Company's enterprise value at the end of the relevant period
exceeds a floor amount The amount payable to partiepants Increases up to a maximum aggregate amount of £6 mullion which i1s payable if the
Company's enterprise value at such time Is not less than £450 million

For these purposes, an Admission to the London Stock Exchange ("Admission”) will constitute an exit event. Therefore the company
will be required to pay up to £6 millon at the date falling 12 months and 40 days after Admission to participants under the GSOP

The fair values of the financial instruments entered into under this scheme were calculated and were purchased by the participants at this price
In accordance with IFRS 2, the Group has recognised a charge of £4,770,000 in the year (2010 £nil) in respect of this cash settled scheme

Performance Share Plan (P5P)

On 24 June 201 the Group put in place a Performance Share Plan ("PSP™) which uses shares to provide long-term incentives to Executive
Directors and senior management of the Group Awards made urdier the PSP are subject to a matnix of non-market based performance targets
(based on adjusted earnings per share and revenue compound growth) and are measured over a performance pericd to 31 December 2013
Awards will vest in June 2014 subject to continued employment

In the event that all the performance critena are met a maximum nurmber of 1400,000 sharas will vest The fair value of each award 15 £219
calculated by reference to the closing market price on the dealing day precedng the date of grant None of the awards lapsed during the year
Based on the Group's three year forecasts, management expect that 65 per cent of the shares wilf vest

In accordance with IFRS 2, the Group has recognised a charge of £352,000 (2010 £nil}in respect of this equity settled scheme

Ordinary B Shares

The Group had a ¢lass of share, the B Ordinary Shares, which are part paid onissue These were issued to semior staff as a share incentive
scheme The Group applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments to these shares The cost to the Group of these incentives
was measured at far value at the date of grant and expensed on a straight ine basis over an estimated penod of three years The charge
In the year was Enil (2010 E1M1000) These shares were redesignated in the year as set out 10 note 25

Farr value was calculated using the binomial option pricing model The expected Iife 15 the expected penod until a Company share event

(sale or IPQ) The volatility was based on comparnsaon with simifar, quoted companies The nisk-free interest rate used was bank base rate
Assumphbions were made of the eligible recipients who would leave in each year pnor tc a B share event
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27. Non-controlling Interests

At 3 At 31

December December

201 2010

£'000 £'000

Sportal Australia Pty Ltd 189 443
Global Sports Media BV - 621
‘Watch and Trade Limited - 102
QOther (39) -
150 1173

28, Acquislitions
Acquisitions have been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting The goodwill ansing on these acquisitions will be subject
to an annual Impairment review

Global Sports Media BY

On 9 January 2009 the Group acquired 51 per cent of the shares in Global Sports Media BV, a Duteh company which owns and runs the
Soccerway com sports information website and provides sports statistics and data to a wide range of internationat customers The Group
excercised (ts option to acguire the remaning 49 per cent of shares in Decernber 201 for €4 3 milion

WatchandTrade Ltd
In Decernber 2011 the Group acquired the remaining 40 per cent of shares of WatchandTrade Limited for £550,000 with additional
consicleration based on the annual results of WatchandTrade over the period te 31 December 2013

Sportal

On 29 July 2009 the Group acquired 66 per cent of the shares in Sportal Australia Pty Ltd, an Australian company which owns and runs

the Sportal com au sports website and provides sports data and website and mobile solutions to a wide range of customers to Australia A
contractual commitment was alsa made to acquire the remaining shareholding 1n three tranches in 2010, 201 and 2012 Accordingly, in 2010 and
201 the Group acquired an addibonal 22 per cent (11 per cent in each year) of the shares n Sportal for £314 000 and £311 000 respectively The
remaining 12 per cent not currently owned by the Group will be acquired (In Ine wath terms of the anginal acquisition) in or before April 2012

The commitment to acquire the remaining 12 per cent (2010 22 per cent) 15 a derivative financial habiity The Directors consider the fair value of
this option to be iImmatenat

Spox Media GmbH and mediasports Digital GmbH

In December 2011 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Spox Media GenbH (Spox) and mediasports Digital GmbH (msd) for irit:al
consideration of €3,650 000 Contingent consideration of up to €12 350 000 1s payable based on the combined results of Spox and msd for
the years to 31 Decernber 2012, 2013 and 2014 (the "Earn-out Period”) The Directors’ best estimate of the discounted fair value contingent
consideration 1s £3 547,000 The discount (0 per cent) applied will be unwound through the income statement over the Earn-out Pencd

The following table sets out the book values of the Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired and therr provisionat fair value to the Group at the
acguisition date
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

28. Acquisitlons continued

Bock Falr
value on Fair value value to
acquisition adjustment the Group
£000 £'000 £000
Non-current assets:
intangible assets 745 1980 2725
Property, lant and equipment 88 (88) -
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 961 - 961
Cash 598 - 598
Total assets 2392 1,892 4284
Current liabilities,
Trade and other payables (2,800 186) 2,987
Deferred tax labilty - (706) (706)
Total liabilities (2800 (B9 (2,693
Net assets acquired (409) 1000 591
Goodwili ansing 6,035
Fair value of total consideration 6626

Falr value adjustrents relate primarily to the following

+ elimination of intangible assets (£0 7m) and tangible assets (£0 Im) that were replaced as part of the acquisiicn accounting process

« recognition of an intangible asset for the domain name and associated trademarks valued at £18m using the relief from royalty method
which reflects the discounted future cash flows saved from not incurnng royalty payments The doman name has an indefinite ife

« recogniion of customer relationships website architecture and content archives which in total are valued at £10m These amounts will be
written off over three years

The goodwil ansing on the acquisiion s largely attnbutable to the anticipated synergies created by the highly complementary business activities
The acquisition enables the Group to increase its scale and reach in the German digital sports media market in addition to realising technology

cost synergies

The far value of consideration 1 comprised of

£'000
Inibial cash consideration 3,079
Contingent cash coensideration 3,547
6,626

The Group's results for the year reflect post acquisition revenue from Spox and mediasports Digital of £0 2m and a profit before tax of £01m
Had Spox and mediasports Digital been acquired on 1 January 201, it would have contributed revenue of £6 3m and a loss before tax of £06m

Goal com (Holdco) S A
On 18 February 2011 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Goal com (Holdeo) S A for a total acquisition price of US $30 million
The acquisizon was funded in part, with a £17 milion term loan facility

The following table sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and labiities acquired and their provisional fair value to the Group
at the acquisition date
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Acquisition
Book related Falr value Fair
value on adjust- adjust- value to
acquisition ments ments the Group
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non-current assets,
Intangible assets 597 5970 9331 9331
Property plant and equipment 9 @ - - g%
Currant assets £
Trade and other recevables 641 - 44y 497 B
Cash 26 - - 26 E
Total assets 6647 (5,980) 9187 9854 3
Current habilites
Deferred tax hability - - (2426) (2 426) %
Trade and other payables 1239) - (583) Q82 2
Non current labilities 2
Loans and other borrowings (1734) 1734 - - g
Total llabilities (297%) 1734 (300D (4 248)
Net assets acqulred 3674 (4 246) 6178 5606
Goodwill ansing 12508
Fair value of total consideration 1814
MNat cash outflows in respect of the acquisiion comprised
Gross cash consideration 1814
Cash acquired [EF3)

18072

Acauisiion related adjustrments relate to the elirination of intangible assets which were replaced as part of the acquIsiion accounting process
and financing-related adustments ansing on the transaction

Fair value adjustments relate principally to the recognition of the following acquisition intangbbles and related deferred tax labilities

« the domain name and associated tradermarks valued at £8m using the relief from royalty method which reflects the discounted future
cash flows saved from not incurnng royalty payments The domain name has an indefinite life
« customer relationships valued at £0 75m using the excess earmings valuation method, with a deduction for contributory assets The customer

relationships will be amortised over 3 years
« software and content related intangible assets, which together are valued at £0 5m The software and content assets will be amortised

over three years

The goodwill ansing on the acquisiton of Goal com reflects buyer-specific synergies The acquisiton enables the Group to Increase its scale
and reach In the digitat sports market In addibon to realising technology cost synergies and improving global advertising sates

The Group's results for the year reflect post acguisition revenue from Goal com of £E4 Om and a loss before tax of £0 9m ¢after exceptional
iterns recorded in Goal com) Had Goal com been acquired on 1 January 2011, it would have contnbuted revenue of £4 2m and a loss before
tax of E1lm

%3 malhon of the acguisiion price has been retained in an escrow account until 29 February 2012 (or, if later the date on which Goalcoms
accounts for the financial penod ending 31 Decemnber 2CT1 have been finalised) In order to satisfy any adjustment to the net current asset
value, warranty claims tax indemnity claims or any claims for financial indebtedness of Goal com remaining outstanding after the date

of the acquisibon
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

29. Commitments under finance leases

Within 1to S After 5

1year years years Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
20m
Lease payments 354 214 - 568
Future finance charges 4n 20 - ©8)
Net present values 307 193 - 500
2010
Lease payments 356 246 - 602
Future finance charges 40 (32) - (72}
Net present values 316 214 - 530
30. Commitments

(a) Operating leases
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding comrmitments for future minmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

201 20010

£000 £Q00

Within one year 892 754
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,092 534

After five years = -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for office property and computer equipment costs

{b) Rights commitments

At 31 December 2011 the Group had commitments to acquire internet content nghts of £101m (2010 £29m) of which £39m (2010 £13m) 15 due
In the next year and the remaming £62m (2010 £16m) 1s due tn the next two to five years

(c) Acquisition related commitments

The Group has a contractual commutrment to acquire the remaining shareholding of Sportal Australla Pty Ltd in 2012 (11 per cent remairing) for a
sum based on Sportal's financial performance in 201 The Directors estimate that the payment in 2012 will be approximately £300,000

The Group has a contractual commitment to pay contingent consideration in 2013 2014 and 2015 in relation to the acquisiions of Spox and msd
Refer to note 28 for further details

The Group has a contractual commitment to pay contingent consideration in 2012 2013 and 2014 in relabion to the acquisiion of the non-
controling iInterest of WatchandTrade Ltd This contingent consideration 1s dependent on the EBITDA of WatchandTrade in 201, 2012
and 2013 and the maximum consideration 15 £6 4m The Directors expect the totat payments based on WatchandTrade's annual results to
31 PDecemnber 2013 will be approximately £4m

31. Related parties

There are no additional related party transactions to disclose

32. Contingent liabllitles
There were no contingent liabilites at the year end (2010 £nil}
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33. Net funds

a0m 2010
£'000 £'000

Cash and ¢ash egurvafents 75,863 16,937

Borrowings (12,460) -

Finance leases (500) (530)

Net funds 62,903 16,407 g
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Parent company independent auditors’ report
Perform Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2011

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Perforr Group pic for the year ended 31 December 200 which compnse the
parent company balance sheet, the parent company statement of accounting policies and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been appled in therr preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Cur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to therm in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibity to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibillties of directors and auditers

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent company
financal statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the parent
company financial staterments In accordance with applicable faw and International Standards on Auditing (UK and reland) Those standards
require us to comaly with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scape of the audit of the financlal statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s pravided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinicn the parent company financial statements.

« give a true and far view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 201,
» have been property prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Remuneration Committee Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared I1s consistent
with the parent company financial staterments

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In our cpinion

+ adequate accounbing records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from
branches not visited by us or

- the parent company financial staternents and the part of the Rernuneration Committee Report to be audited are not in agreernent with the
accounting records and retums, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not receved all the iInformation and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group finangal statements of Perform Group plc for the year ended 31 December 201

Mark Henshaw (Senior Statutory Auditor),

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors, London, Urited Kingdom
28 February 2012
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Perform Group plc
Parent company financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20m 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investments 3 25,110 25008
Current assets
Debtors 4 30,175 21,952
Cash at bank and in hand 65,016 1,227
95191 23179
Current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due
within one year 5 1,852) 1144y
Net current assets 93,239 22035
Total assets less current llabilities 118,349 47043
Net assots 18,349 47,043
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 6 6,260 43,242
Share prermium 6 68,323 -
Capital redemption reserve 6 38,342 -
Proht and loss account a8 5,424 38
Total capital and reserves 118,349 47043

The financial staternents of Perform Group plc, registered number 6324278 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue

on 28 February 2012

Signed on behalf of the Board of Birectors

O Slipper
Director

Perform Group ok Annual Report and Accounts 207
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Perform Group plc
Parent company financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

The indmvidual financial statements for the Company have been prepared in accordance with UK law and applicable UK GAAP
accounting standards

The principal accounting policies are summansed below They have all been appled consistently throughout the financial year and
the preceding year

Basls of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards and company law

The Company had cash balances of £65 016 000 at the year end and no borrowings Having reviewed cashfiow forecasts and budgets for the
year ahead the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has sufficient resources to continue In cperationa; existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adept the going concern basis In prepanng the accounts

Exemptlons

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented a profit
and loss account for the Company alone The Company 1 also exernpt under the terms of FRS 8 Related Parties from disclosing related-party
transactions with entities that are wholly owned and part of the Perform Group plc group

Investments
Fixed asset investrnents are shown at cost less prowvision 1If any for mparment

Revenue recognition
Revenue represents armounts dernved from the provision of management services to the Group's subsidianes and are also derived from
the Group's continuing, ordinary activities after the deduction of value added tax

Forelgn currency translation
Foregn currency transactions of individual companies are translated at the rates ruling when they occurred Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the dosing spot rate Any differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the penod Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome statement
because It exciudes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and further excludes itermns that are never taxable
or deductible The Company's liability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 recognised in respect of all bming differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions
or events have occurred at that date that will resuit in an obligation to pay more, or a nght to pay less or to receive more tax with the following
exceptons.

+ provision 1s made for tax on gains ansng from the revaluation (and sielar fair value adjustments) of fixed assets, and gains on disposal of
fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets, only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date there 1s a binding agreement
to dispose of the assets concerned However, no provision is made where, on the bass of all avallable evidence at the balance sheet date,
it 15 more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged to tax only where the replacernent
assets are sold, and

« deferred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that the Directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that there will be suntable taxable
profits fror which the future reversal of the underiying timing differences can be deducted
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Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which timing differences reverse,
based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Share-based payments

Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments the fair values of employees’ services are determined indirectly by reference
to the farr value of the instrument granted to the employee This farr value 1s appraised at the grant date and for cash settled instruments

15 re-appraised at each balance sheet date

All equity settled share-based payments are ultimately recognised as an expense In the iIncome statement with a corresponding credit
to reserves Al cash settled share-based payments have a corresponding lrabidity

If vesting penods apply the expense 1s allocated over the vesting penod Estimates are revised subsequently if there i1s any indications that
the number of awards expected to vest differs frorm previous estimates

1. Staff costs
Employee costs {(including Executive Directors) were
201 2010
£'000 €000
Wages and salaries 2,539 2572
Social securnity costs 284 261
Pension costs 14 100
Share-based payments 537 Ml
3,474 3044
The following table sets out the Directors’ remuneration
20m 2010
£000 £'00C
Wages and other benefds 892 863
Social securnty costs 110 106
1,002 269
The emoluments of the highest paid Director were
201 2010
£'000 £'000
Emoluments 319 334

2. Profit for the year
As permitted by section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year
The Company reported a profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 201 of £1266 00C (2010 £4,005,025 profit)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Perform Group plc
Parent company financial statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2011

3. Investments

20m 2010

£'000 E£'Q00

At 1 January 25,008 25008
Capital contributions to Group companies 102 -
At 31 December 25110 25008

Perform Media Services Ltd a registered company in Great Britain whose main trade 1s digital sports media, is the Company’s only directly
owned subsidiary The Company owns 100 per cent of the shares in the entity

1t 15 the opinion of the Directors that the total value of the Company's nvestrent inits subsidianes 1s not less than the amounts at which they are
stated above

The Group's Performance Share Plan (refer to note 7 to the financial staterments) 1s an equity settled scheme settled with shares In the Company
Accordingly an increase In investments is recorded to account for the capital contribution to subsidiaries

4, Debtors ¢all current)

20Mm 2010
£'000 £:000 -~
Amounts owed by group undertakings 29,693 21655
Prepayments and accrued income 353 297 ’
Deferred tax 129 -
30,775 21,952
S. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
201 2010
£000 £000
Trade creditors 277 70
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 197 8
Corporation tax hability 233
Other taxes and social security n3 -
Accrnuals and deferred revenue 1,132 1066
1,952 1144
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6. Share capiltal

At 31 At 31
December December
201 2010
£'000 £'000
Issued
Preference Shares of £1 each - 38,912 %m -
| A Ordinary Shares of £1 each - 4,324 H]
B Qrdinary Shares of £1 each (E0 Ol paid) - 6 E
Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/2ths pence each 6,260 - ’6’
‘ 6,260 43 242 n
E
At 31 At 3t %
December December
B 20m 2010
Nos Nos
-~ Issued
Preference Shares of £l each - 18912
" A Ordinary Shares of £1each - 4,323
B Ordinary Shares of £1 each (£0 O1 paid) - 57
Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each 225,376 -
225,376 43806

On 18 March 2011 the Company re-registered from a private imited company to a public irrsted company

TINVIMEAOD l i

Following a resolution of the Company passed on 7 Apnl 2011 which took effect immediately pnor to the Listing of the Company’s secunties
on the main market of the London Stock Exchange

« gach of the Company's A Ordinary Shares were subdivided reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary Shares

« gach of the Company's B Ordinary Shares were subdivided reclassified and redesignated as 36 new Ordinary $Shares

» each holding of the existing Preference Shares were consolidated into one preference share,

« these Preference Shares were subdivided reclassified and redesignated into, In aggregate, 21132 432 new Ordinary Shares and 1380,354,048
deferred shares of 2 7/0ths pence each in the capitai of the Company and

s the Company allotted a further 28 Om Ordinary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence each

Following the share re-orgarusation and Listing the Company's share capital compnsed 225 376,072 new Ordnary Shares of 2 and 7/9ths pence
The Cempany recewved proceeds, net of bank fees and costs of £69 7m

On 21 June the Company cancelled at no cost all of the deferred shares created on Listing The deferred shares did not entitle the holders to any
dividends or distribution and were only able to be transferred by the Company A capital redemption reserve of £38 3m was created as a result
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Perform Group plc
Parent company financial statements continued .
Year ended 31 December 2011

7. Share-based payments
A total charge of £537,000 (2010 £111000) relating to the Company's share-based payment schemes has been incluced in the
income statement

Growth Securities Ownership Plan (GSOP)

In March 2010 the Board resolved to put in place a Growth Secunbies Qwnership Plan (the "GSOP™) Under the GSOP certain key
non-shareholding employees were given the opportunity to purchase a financial instrument which tracks the Company's enterprise value
(defined as market capitalisabion for these purposes) over a set perod being the period ending 12 months after the occurrence of an exit event,

The terms of the GSOP provide for cash payments on a pro-rata basis by the Company to particpants (subject to such participant’s continued
ermployment at the Group at the date payable) f the Company's enterpnse value at the end of the relevant period exceeds a floor amount The

amount payable to participants increases up to a maximum aggregate amount of £6 million which 1s payable If the Company's enterprise value

at such time 1s nct less than £450 milion

For these purposes, an Adrmission to the London Stock Exchange ("Admission”) will constitute an exit event The fair values of the financa!
Instruments entered iNto under this scherme were calculated and were purchased by the participants at this price

In accerdance with IFRS 2, the Company has recognised a charge of £286,000 in the year (2010 £nil) In respect of this cash settled scheme

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

On 24 June 20N the Group put in place a Performance Share Plan ("PSP") which uses shares to provide long-term incentives to Executive bl
Directors and senior management of the Group Awards made under the PSP are subject to a matnx of non market based paerformance targets
(based on adjusted earnings per share and revenue compound growth} and are measured over a performance pered to 31 December 2013
Awards will vest in June 2014 subject to continued employment

In accordance with IFRS 2, the Company has recognised a charge of £251000 (2010 £nil) In respect of this equity settled scheme

Ordinary B Shares

The Group had a class of share, the B Ordinary Shares which are part paid on i1ssue These were 1ssued to senior staff as a share incantive
scheme The Group applied the reguirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments to these shares The cost to the Group of these Incentives
was measured at fair value at the date of grant and expensed on a straight line basis over an estimated pencd of three years The charge
i the year was £nit (£2010 £11,000) These shares had been redesignated in the year as set out in note 25

Fair value was calculated using the binomial option pricing model The expected ife s the expected period untl a Company share event

(sale or IPO) The volatility was based on comparnson with similar, guoted companies The nsk-free interest rate used was bank base rate
Assumptions were made of the eligible recipients who would leave in each year prior to a B share event.
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8. Equity/retalned earnings

Issued Capltal Profit Total share-

share Share redemption and loss holders’

capital premium reserve account funds

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

AL January 2010 43,242 - - (315) 42927

Profit for the year - - - 4005 4005

Share-based payments - - - m m g
At 1 January 2011 43,242 - - 3,801 47,043 z
Re-classification and issue of share capital/ g
premium {neat of fees) 1,360 68,323 - - 69683 g
Cancellaiion of deferred shares {38342) - B34 - - n
Profit for the year - - - 1266 1,266 E
Credit to equity for share-based payments - - - 357 357 §
At 31 December 2011 6,260 68,323 38,342 5,424 118,349 pt
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Perform Group plc

Shareholders information

Company secretary
David Surtees

Registered office
Perform Group plc
Sussex House
Plane Tree Crescent
Feltham TWI13 7HE

Investor contact
Stephen Malthouse

Tulchan Communications LLP

85 Fleet Street
London EC4Y 1AE
T 020 7353 4200

E smalthouse@tulchangroup com

Registrars

Equirttt Lirnited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN93 6DA

Auditors

Grant Thomton UK LLP
Grant Thomton House
Melton Street

Euston Square

London NwW1 2EP

Legal advisers

Freshfields Bruckbaus Deringer LLP
65 Fleet Street

London ECAY 1S

Wiggn LLP

10th Floor Met Bulding
22 Percy Street
London W1T 2BU

Joint Corporate Brokers
Morgan Stanley

25 Cabot Square
Londen

El4 40A

uBs

1 Finsbury Avenue
London

EC2M 2PP

Company website

Investor and shareholder related information
can be found on the Comparny website at
www performgroup corm/Investors

Financial Calendar
AGM Tuesday 17 April 2012
Intenm results presentation August 2012'

Date of Interim resuits presentabon comect at time of print
but subject to change
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